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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Medi Assist Insurance TPA Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Medi Assist Insurance TPA Private
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, and the
Statement of Profit and Loss (Including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes in
Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, and profit,
other comprehensive loss, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAl) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the Director’s report but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. if, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting
Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do
50.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

We give in “Annexure A” a detailed description of Auditor’s responsibilities for Audit of the
Financial Statements.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give
in “Annexure B” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order,
to the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive
income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by
———_this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

/: /'"“-_(md') \ln.our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards

I

(3 ‘9 s'?ecified under Section 133 of the Act.

.’/ ." /
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(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors are disqualified as on
March 31, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexure C”.

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its financial statements - Refer Note 26 toc the financial
statements;

ii. The Company has any long-term contracts as on March 31, 2023 for which
there were no material foreseeable losses. The company did not have any
derivative contracts as on March 31, 2023.

jii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv.

a. The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, as disclosed in the Note 43 to the financial statements, no funds
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds
or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded
in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

b. The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge
and belief, no funds have been received by the Company from any
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Parties),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, as
on the date of this audit report, that the Company shall, directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

¢. Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered
reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, and according to the
information and explanations provided to us by the Management in this
regard nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe
that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) of Rule 11(e) as
provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material mis-statement.

W V. The interim dividend declared and paid by the Company during the year
' and until the date of this audit report is in accordance with section 123 of

|  9 \e the Companies Act 2013.

S
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vi. As proviso to rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable for
the Company only w.e.f. April 1, 2023, reporting under this clause is not
applicable.

3. In our opinion, according to information, explanations given to us, the remuneration paid
by the Company to its directors is within the limits laid prescribed under Section 197 of the
Act and the rules thereunder.

For M S K A & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 105047W

Amit Kumar Jhuhjhunwala \a\
Partner NS
Membership No. 067183 N Act

UDIN: 23067183BGWNTY6342

Place: Bengaluru
Date: June 29, 2023
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ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON EVEN DATE ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF MEDI ASSIST INSURANCE TPA PRIVATE LIMITED

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act,
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

For M S K A & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration No. 105047W

Amit Kumar Jhuhjhunwala (1= \ "||
Partner L\ o))
Membership No. 067183 NN _AS/
UDIN: 23067183BGWNTY6342 4

Place: Bengaluru
Date: June 29, 2023
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ANNEXURE B TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF MEDI ASSIST INSURANCE TPA PRIVATE LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

[Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in the
Independent Auditors’ Report]

i.
(a) A. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment, and relevant details of right-of-use assets.

B. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(b) Property, Plant and Equipment and right of use assets have been physically verified by the
management at reasonable intervals during the year and no material discrepancies were identified
on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no immovable properties
(other than properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed
in favour of the lessee). Accordingly, the requirements under paragraph 3(i)(c) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not revalued its
property, plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the
year. Accordingly, the requirements under paragraph 3(i)(d) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us, no proceeding has been initiated or
pending against the Company for holding benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988, as amended and rules made thereunder. Accordingly, the provisions stated
in paragraph 3(i){e) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(a) The Company is involved in the business of rendering services. Accordingly, the provisions stated in
paragraph 3(ii) (a) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(b) During the year The Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores in
aggregate from Banks/financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets. However,
there is no requirement to file quarterly returns / statements filed with such Banks/ financial
institutions as the limits have not been utilized.
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iii.

(a) According to the information explanation provided to us, the Company has provided loans or

(b)

()

(d)

(e)

)

provided advances in the nature of loans, or given guarantee, or provided security to any other
entity.

The details of such loans or advances and guarantees or security to parties other than Subsidiaries,
Joint ventures and Associates are as follows:

Guarantees Security Loans Advances in the
nature of loans
Aggregate  amount | Nil Nil 7.32 [ Nil
| granted/provided
during the year
- Others |
Balance Outstanding | Nil Nil 4.10 Nil
as at balance sheet
date in respect of
above cases
- Others -

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
performed by us, we are of the opinion that the terms and conditions in relation to investments
made, guarantees provided and securities given and grant of all loans and advances in the nature of
loans and guarantees are not prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

In case of the loans and advances in the nature of loan, schedule of repayment of principal and
payment of interest have been stipulated and the borrowers have been regular in the payment of
the principal and interest.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, there are no amounts overdue for more than ninety days in respect of
the loan granted to Other Parties (employees).

According to the information explanation provided to us, the loan or advance in the nature of loan
granted has not fallen due during the year. Hence, the requirements under paragraph 3(iii)(e) of
the Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information explanation provided to us, the Company has not granted
loans/advances, either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of
repayment to other parties. Hence, the requirements under paragraph 3(iii)(f) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied with the
provisions of 186 of the Act, in respect of loans, investments and security made. The Company has
neither, directly or indirectly, granted any loan, or provided guarantee or security to any of its
directors or to any other person in whom the director is interested, in accordance with the
provisions of Section 185. Accordingly, Section 185 stated in paragraph 3(iv) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no amounts outstanding which
are in the nature of deposits as on March 31, 2023 and the Company has not accepted any deposits
during the year.
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vi.  The provisions of sub-Section (1) of Section 148 of the Act are not applicable to the Company as
the Central Government of India has not specified the maintenance of cost records for any of the
services of the Company. Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3 (vi) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

vii.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company

examined by us, in our opinion, undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services tax,
provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs,
duty of excise, value added tax, cess, and other statutory dues have generally been regularly
deposited with the appropriate authorities though there has been a slight delay in a few cases.
There are no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Services tax, provident fund,
employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise,
cess, and other statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2023 for a period of more than six months
from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us and examination of records of the
Company, details of statutory dues referred to in sub Clause (a) above which have not been
deposited as on March 31, 2023 on account of any dispute, are as follows:

' Name of the | Nature of [ Amount [ Amount Paid | Period to | Forum where |
statute dues Demanded | (Rs. Million) | which the | dispute is pending
(Rs. In amount
million) relates
Income  tax | Income tax | 464.95 Nil 2008-09 Hon’ble  Supreme
Act, 1961 and interest Court
there on
Income  tax | Income tax | 25.92 25.92 2011-12 Income-tax
Act, 1961 and interest Appellant Tribunal
there on (ITAT), Bengaluru
Income tax | Income  tax | 30.49 8.03 2017-18 Commissioner  of |
Act, 1961 and interest Income Taxes
there on (Appeals),
_ Bengaluru
Income  tax | Income tax | 36.67 Nil 2018-19 Commissioner of
Act, 1961 and interest Income Taxes
there on (Appeals),
_ Bengaluru
Income  tax | Income  tax | 14.10 TNil 2020-21 Commissioner  of
Act, 1961 and interest Income Taxes
there on (Appeals),
Bengaluru |
viii.  According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no transactions which are not

accounted in the books of account which have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the
year in Tax Assessment of the Company. Also, there are no previously unrecorded income which has
been now recorded in the books of account. Hence, the provision stated in paragraph 3(viii) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.
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ix.
(@) The Company does not have any loans or borrowings and repayment to lenders during the year.
Accordingly, the provision stated in paragraph 3(ix)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit procedures,
we report that the Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or government or any government authority.

(c) In our opinion and according to the information explanation provided to us, no money was raised by
way of term loans. Accordingly, the provision stated in paragraph 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(d) According to the information and explanation provided to us, there are no funds raised on short
term basis. Accordingly, the provision stated in paragraph 3(ix)(d) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

(e) According to the information explanation given to us and on an overall examination of the financial
statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not taken any funds from an any
entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiary.

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we
report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiary. Hence, reporting under the Clause 3(ix)(f) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

(@) In our opinion and according to the information explanation given to us, the Company did not raise
any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) during
the year. Hence, the provisions stated in paragraph 3(x)(a) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully, partly, or optionally convertible debentures during the year. Hence,
the provisions stated in paragraph 3(x)(b) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xi.

(a) Based on our examination of the Company's books and records, conducted in accordance with the
generally accepted auditing practices in India, and the information and explanations provided to us,
we report that no material fraud involving the Company or affecting the Company's operations has
been identified or reported during our audit. However, the Company has identified few instances of
an employee collusion, based on a whistleblower report. According to an assessment by an external
consultant, the estimated total impact of these cases is likely to be Rs 2.97 million. The
corresponding amount has been fully accounted for in the financial statements. The management
has taken appropriate measures to enhance the effectiveness of its operational controls.

(b) We have not come across of any instance of material fraud by the Company or on the Company
during the course of audit of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023,
accordingly the provisions stated in paragraph (xi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(c) We have taken into consideration the whistle blower complaints received by the Company during
the year and shared with us for reporting under this Clause.

xii.  The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3(xii) (a) to
(c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.
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xiii.  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Sections 188
of the Act, where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial
statements as required by applicable accounting standards. Further, the Company is not required to
constitute an Audit Committee under Section 177 of the Act.

xiv.
(a) In our opinion and based on our examination, the Company has an internal audit system
commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

(b) We have considered internal audit reports of the Company issued till date, for the period under
audit.

xv.  According to the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion, during the year the
Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with its
directors and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable to Company.

xvi.
(a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45 |A of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934 and accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3 (xvi)(a) of the Order are not applicable
to the Company.

(b) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45 IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934 and accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3 (xvi)(b) of the Order are not applicable
to the Company.

(c) The Company is not a Core investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by Reserve
Bank of India. Hence, the reporting under paragraph 3 (xvi)(c) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

(d) The Company is not part of any group (as per the provisions of the Core Investment Companies
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 as amended). Hence, the provisions stated in paragraph 3 (xvi)(d) of
the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xvii. Based on the overall review of financial statements, the Company has not incurred cash losses in the
current financial year and in the immediately preceding financial year. Hence, the provisions stated
in paragraph 3 (xvii) of the Order are not applicable ta the Company.

xviii. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Hence, the provisions
stated in paragraph 3 (xviii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xix.  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors
and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions,
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists
as on the date of the audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at
the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit
report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when
they fall due.
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xx. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our verification, the
provisions of Section 135 of the Act are applicable to the Company. The Company has made the
required contributions during the year and there are no unspent amounts which are required to be
transferred either to a Fund or to a Special Account as per the provisions of Section 135 of the Act
read with schedule VIi. Accordingly, reporting under Clause 3(xx)(a) and Clause 3(xx)(b) of the

Order is not applicable to the Company.

xxi. The reporting under Clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone
financial statements. Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said Clause has been included in

the report.

For MS K A & Associates
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No. 105047W //,_5;.” -‘:--‘-*-:;-Q_\__\
C ) i /‘f_‘__x\ \
) 1 f/ oA\
W I kuraum . (2 'f"
| * | | ||
Amit Kumar Jhunjbunwala \a\
Partner NN

Membership No. 067183
UDIN: 23067183BGWNTY6342 —

Place: Bengaluru
Date: June 29, 2023
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ANNEXURE C TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF MEDI ASSIST INSURANCE TPA PRIVATE LIMITED

[Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in the
Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the Members of Medi Assist Insurance TPA Private Limited
on the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Medi Assist
Insurance TPA Private Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control with
reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl) (the “Guidance
Note”).

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10)
of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error.
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MSKA & Associates

Chartered Accountants

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With reference to Financial Statements

A Company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A Company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management
and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With reference to financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial statements may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For MS K A & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration No. 105047W

it Ferfta

Amit Kumar Jhunjhunwala [l | )% |
Partner \a\ /2
Membership No. 067183 N :
UDIN: 23067183BGWNTY6342

Place: Bengaluru
Date: June 29, 2023
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Medi Assist Insurance TPA Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Notes Asat As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 213.11 162.74
Right-of-use assets 4 (a) 253.32 174.67
Goodwill 5 217.63 217.63
Other intangible assets 113.21 144.31
Financial assets
(i) Other financial assets 7 (a) 49.71 25.12
Income tax assets (net) 2 552.5% 474.58
Deferred tax assets (net) 9 55.18 52.07
Other non-current assets 10 30.28 3.79
Total non-current assets 1,485.03 1,254.91
Current assets
Financial assets
(i) Investments 11 (a) 575.81 1,564.03
(ii) Trade receivables 11 (b) 1,183.23 1,046.04
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 11 (c) 194.91 111.68
(iv) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents above 11 (d) 1,525.33 454.91
(v) Other financial assets 11 () 138.18 145.12
Other current assets 12 203.93 171.67
Total current assets 3,821.39 3,493.45
Total Assets 5,306.42 4,748.36
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Equity share capital 13 40.12 40.12
Other equity 14 2,511.72 2,071.67
Total equity 2,551.84 2,111.79
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Lease liabilities 4(b) 177.51 146.83
Provisions 15 119.01 103.16
Total non-current liabilities 296.52 249.99
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Lease liabilities 4 (b) 100.12 82.16
Trade payables 16 (a)
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 68.02 31.36
Total outstanding dues to creditors other than 258.38 429.50
micro enterprises and small enterprises
Other financial liabilities 16 (b) 208.99 78.37
Contract liabilities 17 1,664.64 1,536.96
Provisions 18 78.84 61.60
Other current liabilities 19 79.07 166.64
Total current liabilities 2,458.06 2,386.59
Total liabilities 2,754.58 2,636.58
Total equity and liabilities 5,306.42 4,748.36
Summary of significant accounting policies o
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date attached.
For M S K A & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Medi Assist Insurance TPA Private Limited
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 105047W CIN: LI55199KA1999PTC025676
€ /S L .ﬁ TS ]
O“‘L N baads \ :
Amit Kumar JhunjhuLwala l;}r;, Vikram Jit Chhatwal Sarith Gidugu I
Partner Chairman and Dircctor Director r}n

Membership Number: 067183

Place: Bengaluru ', T
Date: June 29, 2023 3.5

DIN: 01606329

Place: Bengaluru
Date: June 29, 2023

DIN: 06643677 (1 /
{*x/

Suchitra%?:::akumar

Company Secretary
ICSI Membership No: A29245

Place: Bengaluru
Date: June 29, 2023



Medi Assist Insurance TPA Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in millions except share data and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

Particul For the year ended For the year ended
articulars Notes March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Continuing operations
Income
Revenue from contract with customers 20 4,849.03 3,853.77
Other income 21 123.62 79.16
Total income 4,972.65 3,932.93
Expenses
Employee benefits expense 22 1,727.73 1,405.16
Finance costs 23 2345 2491
Depreciation and amortisation expense 24 203.56 199.41
Other expenses 25 1,974.87 1,677.81
Total expenses ’ 3,929.61 3,307.29
Profit before tax for the year from continuing operations 1,043.04 625.64
Income tax expense: 34
Current tax 261.12 161.97
Deferred tax (2.42) 14.49
Total tax expense 258.70 176.46
Profit after tax for the year from continuing operations 784.34 449.18
Discontinued operations 35
Profit/ (loss) for the year from discontinued operations (16.92) 10.04
Tax for the year 4.26 (2.53)
Profit/ (loss) after tax for the year from discontinued operations (12.66) 7.51
Profit for the year 771.68 456.69
Other comprehensive income
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:
Re-measurement losses on defined benefit plans 2.73) (26.03)
Income tax effect on above 0.69 6.55
Total other comprehensive (loss) for the year, net of tax (2.04) (19.48)
Total comprehensive income for the year after tax 769.64 437.21
Earnings per share for continuing operations 27
[Face value of Rs. 10 per share (31 March 2022: Rs. 10 per share)]
Basic 195.48 111.95
Diluted 195.48 108.97
Earnings per share for discontinued operations [Face value of Rs. 10 per share 27
(31 March 2022: Rs. 10 per share)]
Basic (3.16) 1.87
Diluted (3.16) 1.87
Earnings per share for continuing and discontinued operations [Face value of Rs. 27
10 per share (31 March 2022: Rs. 10 per share)]
Basic 192.33 113.82
Diluted 192.33 110.80
Summary of significant accounting policies e 7

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached.

For M § K A & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Medi Assist Insurance TPA Private Limited
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 105047W CIN: U85199KA1999PTC025676

ek Tt ‘QM

Amit Kumar Jhunjhunyala . Vikram Jit Chhatwal
Partner Chairman and Director
Membership Number: 067183 DIN: 01606329
\ \\
|
1
Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru

Date: June 29, 2023 Date: June 29, 2023

sﬁ/Gidugu [
Director 1
DIN: 06643677 o
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N S
N/
Suchitra Krishnakumar

Company Secretary
ICSI Membership No: A29245

Place: Bengaluru
Date: June 29, 2023
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Medi Assist Insurance TPA Private Limited

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)

. For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars Notes March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax for the year from continuing operations 1,043.04 625.64
Profit/ (loss) before tax for the year from discontinued operations (16.92) 10.04
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:

Depreciation and amortisation expenses 24 203.56 199.41
Allowance for expected credit losses on trade receivables and other receivables (60.11) (86.84)
Rent concession - (6.62)
Employee stock option compensation expense 22 11.67 8.04
Finance costs 23 23.45 2491
Profit on sale of investments in mutual funds 21 (53.15) (5.64)
Profit on sale of assets (0.72) (0.34)
Loss on scrapping of assets 25 3.17 10.67
Advances written off 1.26 7.14
Interest income (38.48) (28.07)
Net gain on financial assets measured at fair value through profit and loss 2 (8.64) (32.85)
Creditors/Provision no longer required written back (12.40) (5.44)
Gain on modification/termination of lease contract (10.10) (5.67)
Operating profits before working capital changes 1,085.63 714.37
‘Working capital adjustments:
Decrease in trade payables (122.06) (14.43)
Increase in other liabilities 18.16 310.52
Increase in provisions 30.36 21.00
{Increase)/decrease in trade receivables (73.08) 126.06
Increase in other assets (54.05) (94.68)
Cash generated from operations 884.96 1,062.84
Income taxes paid (net of refund) (343.24) (347.66)
Net cash flows generated from operating activities (A) 541.72 715.18
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment, other intangible assets including capital (147.52) (43.55)
advances
Advance given for acquisition of subsidiary - (50.00)
Acquisition of subsidiary (245.00) -
(Purchase)/sale of mutual funds (net) 1,286.37 (735.46)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 4.10 6.46
(Investments)/redemption of bank deposit (1,068.31) 17.08
Interest received 33.21 26.13
Net cash generated from/ (used in) investing activities (B) (137.15) (779.34)
Cash flows from financing activities
Finance costs paid (1.76) (1.99)
Dividend paid 14 (200.00) -
Repayment of lease liabilities 4 (b) (119.58) (100.96)
Net cash used in financing activities (C) (321.34) (102.95)
Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 83.23 (167.11)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 111.68 278.81
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 194.91 111.68
Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per the cash flow statement
Component of cash and cash equivalents 11 (c)
Balances with banks
- In current accounts 194.69 111.53
Cash on hand 0.22 0.15
Total cash and cash equivalents 194.91 111.68

(This space is intentionally left blank)



Medi Assist Insurance TPA Private Limited
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)

Reconciliation of financial liabilities forming part of financing activities in accordance with Ind AS 7:

Non-cash movements in financing activities
(a) Lease liabilities (Non-current and current):

Opening balance 229.00 297.25
Additions 177.95 23.86
Deletions (31.43) -
Interest expense for the year 21.69 22.92
Lease modification entered during the year - (7.45)
Rent concession - (6.62)
Cash movements in financing activities

Repayment of lease liabilities (119.58) (100.95)
Closing balance 277.63 229.00

Summary of significant accounting policies Note 2.

The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Ind AS 7 - "Statement of Cash Flows" notified under section 133 of Companies Act, 2013

('the Act') read with Rule 4 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 (as amended) and the relevant provisions of the Act.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date attached.
For M S K A & Associates

Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 105047W

< s :
.lll.'; I.'. .\\, \ ; —
Amit Kumar Jhunjhupwala [[ = i Dr/ Vikram Jit Chhatwal

Partner |.'. |‘. Chairman and Director
Membership Number: 067183 N DIN: 01606329

Place: Bengaluru
Date: June 29, 2023

Place: Bengaluru
Date: June 29, 2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Medi Assist Insurance TPA Private Limited
CIN: U85199KA1999PTC025676
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85tish Gidugu
Director
DIN: 06643677
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Suchitra Krishnakumar
Company Secretary
ICST Membership No: A29245

Place: Bengaluru
Date: June 29, 2023



Medi Assist Insurance TPA Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)

1

1A

I

I

(a

=

(b)

Corporate Information
Medi Assist Insurance TPA Private Limited ("the Company") is a private limited company domiciled in India and is incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in
India. The registered office of the Company is situated in Tower D, 4th Floor, IBC Knowledge Park, 4/1 Bannerghatta Road, Bangalore - 560 029.

The Company holds a license from the Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority (IRDA) to function as a Third Party Administrator (TPA). The Company primarily derives its
income in the form of TPA fees from insurance companies expressed either as a percentage of the insurance premium paid by the insured to the insurance company or as a fixed price per
member/ family. The Company also derives income from pre-policy check ups and other allied services provided to insurance companies, and for policy administration services rendered
to Governments to enable public health schemes.The Company has signed up contracts with several general and health insurance companies to manage the requirements of their
policyholders, as well as with healthcare providers (such as hospitals) to enable a network for policyholders to avail of cashless treatment at pre-negotiated tariffs.

The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Medi Assist Healthcare Services Limited ("the Holding Company").

The Board of Directors of the Company vide resolution dated December 30, 2020, approved the discontinuation of the business pertaining to card processing which is mainly generating
revenue from Government contracts. Accordingly, the Company has disclosed the discontinuation of card processing business as discontinued operations as per the requirement of Ind
AS 105 ' Non current asset held for sale and Discontinued Operations', the details of which are stated in note 35.

Further pursuant to the Board resolution dated November 13, 2021, the Company approved the discontinuation of the business pertaining to pre-policy health checkup services which is
mainly generating revenue from insurance companies. Accordingly, the Company has disclosed the discontinuation of pre-policy health checkup business as discontinued operations as
per the requirement of Ind AS 105 ' Non current asset held for sale and Discontinued Operations', the details of which are stated in note 35.

Basis of preparation
Statement of compliance:

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) hereafter referred to as "financial statements” as per the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) notified under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013, (the ‘Act’) and presentation requirements of Schedule III to the Companies Act,
2013, (Ind AS compliant Schedule IIT) and other relevant provisions of the Act.

These financial statements have been prepared for the Company as a going concern on the basis of relevant Ind AS that are effective at the Company’s annual reporting date March 31,
2023. These financial statements were authorised for issuance by the Company’s Board of Directors on June 29, 2023. Previous year accounting policies have been consistently applied
over the current year.

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian rupees, which is also the functional currency of the Company. All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest million, unless
otherwise indicated.

Basis of measurement

The financial statement have been prepared on a historical cost basis. except for the following:

Items Measurement basis

Certain financial assets and liabilities Fair value

Share based payment at grant date Fair value

Defined benefit and other long-term employee benefits obligations Present value of defined benefit obligations less fair value of|
planned assets.

Use of estimates and judgements

In preparing these financial statements in conformity with Ind AS, management has made estimates, judgements and assumptions. These estimates, judgements and assumptions affect
the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the year. Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Appropriate changes in
estimates are made as management becomes aware of changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates are reflected in the financial statements in the year in
which changes are made and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised prospectively.
Judgements, estimates and assumptions are required in particular for:
Determination of the estimated useful lives

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment are based on the life prescribed in Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013. In cases, where the useful lives are different from that
prescribed in Schedule II and in case of intangible assets, these are estimated by management taking into account the nature of the asset, the estimated usage of the asset, the operating
conditions of the asset, past history of replacement, anticipated technological changes, manufacturers’ warranties and maintenance support.

Recognition of deferred tax

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences of temporary differences between the carrying values of assets and liabilities and their respective tax
bases, and unutilized business loss and depreciation carry-forwards and tax credits. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable income will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses, depreciation carry-forwards and unused tax credits could be utilized.

Recognition and measurement of defined benefit obligations

The obligation arising from defined benefit plan is determined on the basis of actuarial assumptions. Key actuarial assumptions include discount rate, trends in salary escalation, actuarial
rates and life expectancy. The discount rate is determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds. The period to maturity of the underlying
bonds correspond to the probable maturity of the post-employment benefit obligations. Due to complexities involved in the valuation and its long term nature, defined bencfit obligation
is sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting period.



Medi Assist Insurance TPA Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(AHll amounts are in Indian Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)

(d) Fair valuation of employee share options

The fair valuation of the employee share options is based on the Black-Scholes Model used for valuation of options. Key assumptions made with respect to expected volatility includes
share price, expected dividends and discount rate, under this pricing model.

(¢) Impairment testing

Property, plant and equipment, goodwill, right of use assets, intangible assets and other assets are tested for impairment at least annually and when event occur or changes in
circumstances indicate that the recoverable amount of the asset or cash generating units to which these pertain is less than its carrying value. The recoverable amount of cash generating
units is higher of value-in-use and fair value less cost to dispose. The calculation of value in use of a cash generating unit involves use of significant estimates and assumptions which
includes turnover and earnings multiples, growth rates and net margins used to calculate projected future cash flows, risk-adjusted discount rate, future economic and market conditions.

(f) Leases

The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease based on the requirements of the relevant standard. Identification of a lease requires significant management judgment.
Computation of the lease liabilities and right-to-use assets requires management to estimate the lease term (including anticipated renewals) and the applicable discount rate. Management
estimates the lease term based on past practices and reasonably estimated/ anticipated future events. The discount rate is generally based on the incremental borrowing rate specific to the
lease being evaluated or for a portfolio of leases with similar characteristic.

(g) Expected credit losses on financial assets

The Company recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for all financial assets not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original effective interest
rate (in case of non current financial assets).

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Company applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Therefore, the Company does not track changes in credit risk, but instead
recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Company has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

V  Measurement of fair values

The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place cither:

(i) In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

(ii) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in
their economic best interest.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable

Level 3 - valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured
using valuation techniques including the DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement
is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect
the reported fair value of financial instruments.

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in the following notes:
- Note 29: Employee share based payment
- Note 31: Financial instruments.

(This space is intentionally left blank)
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V1

M

(i)

Current and non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance sheet based on current / non-current classification.

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

- it is expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company’s normal operating cycle;

- it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

- it is expected to be realized within 12 months after the reporting date; or

- it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date. The monies held in escrow
account and/or like nature accounts are disclosed separately by way of a foot note.

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

- it is expected to be settled in the Company’s normal operating cycle;

- it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

- it is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or

- the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date.

The terms of the liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification.

Current assets/ liabilities include current portion of non-current financial assets/ liabilities respectively.

All other assets/ liabilities are classified as non-current. Deferred tax assets and liabilities (if any) are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

Operating cycle
Based on the nature of the operations and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash or cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its
operating cycle as twelve months for the purpose of current/non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

Significant accounting policies
Financial instruments
Recognition and initial measurement

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial instruments also cover contracts to buy or sell a non-financial item that can be settled net in cash or another financial instrument, or by exchanging financial instruments, as if
the contracts were financial instruments, with the exception of contracts that were entered into and continue to be held for the purpose of the receipt or delivery of a non-financial item in
accordance with the entity’s expected purchase, sale or usage requirements.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Investments in subsidiary is carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Where an indication of impairment exists, the carrying amount of the investment is assessed.
Where the carrying amount of an investment is greater than its estimated recoverable amount, it is written down immediately to its recoverable amount and the difference is transferred to
the Statement of Profit and Loss. On disposal of investment, the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount is charged or credited to the Statement of Profit
and Loss.

Recognition and initial measurement — financial assets and financial liabilities:

A financial asset (except for trade receivables and unbilled revenue/contract assets) or financial liability is initially measured at fair value (plus, for an item not carried at fair value)
through profit and loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial Habilities at FVTPL are recognized immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Finance income consists of interest income on funds invested, dividend income and gains on the disposal of FVTPL financial assets. Interest income is recognized as it accrues in the
Statement of Profit and Loss, using the effective interest method.

Dividend income is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss on the date that the Company’s right to receive payment is established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the Company, and the amount of dividend can be measured reliably.

Finance expenses consist of interest expense on loans, borrowings and financial liabilities. The costs of these are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss using the effective
interest method.

Recognition and initial measurement — financial assets and financial liabilities:
Financial assets

The Company classifies financial assets as measured at amortized cost, fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) or fair value through profit and loss (“FVTPL”) on the
basis of the following:

- the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and

- the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the Company changes its business model] for managing financial assets.

Amortized cost:

A financial asset is classified and measured at amortized cost if both of the following conditions are met:
- the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and
- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”):

A financial asset is classified and measured at FVTOCI if both of the following conditions are met:
- ihie-financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and =
-the contractuptl lerms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amomy( nutsta'zd*ng :
Dl initial <Ogitipn of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the a‘tsr‘#nuent [ ﬁ\( xalye in OCI
(demgnated as L\'Ul I — equity investment). This election is made on an investment-by-investment basis. [~ \
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Financial instruments (continued)
Fair value through profit and loss (“FVTPL")

A financial asset is classified and measured at FVTPL unless it is measured at amortized cost or at FVOCI. On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortized cost or at FVOCT as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would
otherwise arise.

Financial assets: Business model assessment

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held at investment level because this reflects the best way the business is managed
and information is provided to management. The information considered includes:

- the stated policies and objectives for each of such investments and the operation of those policies in practice.

- the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that business model) and how those risks are managed;

- the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are not considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Company’s continuing
recognition of the assets.

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair value basis are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets: Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest:

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money
and for the credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative
costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solcly payments of principal and interest, the Company considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing
whether the financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making this
assessment, the Company considers:

- contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

- terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable interest rate features;

- prepayment and extension features; and

- terms that limit the Company’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non recourse features).

A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest criterion if the prepayment amount substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding, which may include reasonable additional compensation for early termination of the contract. Additionally, for a financial asset acquired at a
significant discount or premium to its contractual par amount, a feature that permits or requires prepayment at an amount that substantially represents the contractual par amount plus
accrued (but unpaid) contractual interest (which may also include reasonable additional compensation for early termination) is treated as consistent with this ctiterion if the fair value of
the prepayment feature is insignificant at initial recognition.

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial assets at FVTPL The assets valued through FVTPL are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any interest or dividend income,
are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.
Financial assets at amortised cost These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment

losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. Any gain or loss
on derecognition is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Equity investments at FVOCI These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognised as income in Statement of Profit and Loss unless the
dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCI and are not
reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held for trading, or it is a derivative or it is
designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, arc recognised in Statement of
Profit and Loss.

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in
Statement of Profit and Loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Derecognition
Financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in
a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of
the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or expire. The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its
terms are modified and the cash flows under the modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The Company determines classification of financial asscts and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity
instruments and no reclasssification is made for financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business

~imodel fop miangging those assets. Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent. The Company's senior management determines change in the business model as a result of

MLumﬂJr ar'intental changes which are significant to the Company's operations. Such changes are evident to external partics. A change in the business model ocetrrwhel the Company
vN\ from the

\ |', I,'I : /
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gam;j)sses (1|}cluljmg impairment gains or losses) or interest. | f

hna: _:;11 ass¢fs and financial labilities are offset and the net amount is presented in the balance sheet when, and only when, the Company currently has a lt‘s.klhf eni@ueablr nght to set
off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. —
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b.

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the respective functional currency of the Company at the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured based on historical cost in a foreign currency are translated at the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Foreign currency differences are generally recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future
cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

Earnings per share

The basic eamings per share (‘EPS") is computed by dividing the net profit/ (loss) after tax for the years attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the year.

The number of shares used in computing diluted earnings per share comprises the weighted average number of shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and also the
weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as
of the beginning of the period unless issued at a later date. In computing dilutive earning per share, only potential equity shares that are dilutive i.e. which reduces eamnings per share or
increases loss per share are included.

Diluted EPS adjust the figures used in the determination of basic EPS to consider:
« The after-income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity shares, and
« The weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Revenue from contract with customers

Income from services
The Company follows Ind AS 115 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”. Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration the Company expects to receive in exchange for those services (net of goods and services tax).

The Company derives revenue from rendering Third Party Administration (TPA) services, which is measured either as a percentage of insurance premium or amount per Life/ family
covered and lumpsum amount under the policy depending on the terms of the contract entered into with insurance companies and government agencies. Such amounts are recognized as
revenue on a pro-rata basis during the period of the underlying insurance policy. Performance obligations while rendering services are satisfied over a period of time based on underlying
contract.

The Company derives revenue from pre-policy health check-up services in accordance with the terms of the relevant service agreement entered with customers and revenue is recognised
at point in time as and when the related services are rendered. Since the Company acts as an agent while providing such services and there exists back to back arrangements in which the
Company merely acts as a facilitator, the Company recognises its margin on these transactions as revenue.

Revenue from card processing income are recognised at point in time as and when the related services are rendered.

The Company presents revenues net of indirect taxes in its Statement of Profit and Loss.

Revenue in excess of invoicing are classified as unbilled receivables where related performance obligations are rendered over the contract term and right to consideration is
unconditional. Invoicing in excess of revenues are classified as contract liabilities.

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the
customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or the payment is
due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

Property, plant and equipment
Recognition and measurement:

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment comprises:

a) its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates.

b) any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.

c) the initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located, the obligation for which an entity incurs either when the item is
acquired or as a consequence of having used the item during a particular period for purposes other than to produce inventories during that period.

An item of property, plant and equipment is eliminated from the financial statements on disposal or when no further benefit is expected from its use and disposal. Any gain or loss on
disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company.
Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding as of each reporting date are shown as capital advances.

Amounts paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding as of each reporting date and the cost of property, plant and equipment not rcady for intended use

befure such date are disclosed under capital work-in-progress.

(This space is intentionally left blank)



Medi Assist Insurance TPA Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)

ii.

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on straight-line method over the estimated useful lives determined based on internal technical assessment by the Management
which in certain instances are different from those prescribed under Part C of Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013 in order to reflect actual usage of the assets. The Company
estimates the useful lives for property, plant and equipment as follows:

Category of assets Useful life (in years)
Furniture and fixtures 10
Office equipment 5
Computers and Computer equipment's, server and network 3-6
Electrical equipment 10

Air conditioners 10

Depreciation is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from the date on which asset is ready for use and the depreciation charge for the year is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the lease term or the useful lives of the assets, whichever is lower.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Intangible assets

Goodwill

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the amount recognised for non-controlling interests, and any previous interest
held, over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the fair value of the net assets acquired is in excess of the aggregate consideration transferred, the Company re-
assesses whether it has correctly identified all of the assets acquired and all of the liabilities assumed and reviews the procedures used to measure the amounts to be recognised at the
acquisition date. If the reassessment still results in an excess of the fair value of net assets acquired over the aggregate consideration transferred, then the gain is recognised in OCI and
accumulated in equity as capital reserve. However, if there is no clear evidence of bargain purchase, the entity recognises the gain directly in equity as capital reserve, without routing the
same through OCI.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is,
from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Company’s cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of
the acquiree are assigned to those units.

A cash generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the
recoverable amount of the cash generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit
and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in profit or loss. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the disposed operation is included in
the carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal. Goodwill disposed in these circumstances is measured based on the relative values of the disposed
operation and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Other intangible assets
(i) Recognition and measurement
Acquired intangible assets

Intangible assets are recognized when it is probable that the future economic benefits that are attributable to the assets will flow to the Company and the cost of the asset can be measured
reliably. Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses, if any.

The estimated useful life of an identifiable intangible asset is based on a number of factors including the effects of obsolescence, demand, competition, and other economic factors (such
as the stabilitv of the industry and technologv required to obtain the expected future cash flows from the asset).

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred.

Useful lives of intangible assets

Amortisation is calculated based on the cost of the asset. Amortisation is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of intangible
assets from the date that they are available for use. Management believes that period of amortisation is representative of the period over which the Company expects to derive economic
benefits from the use of the assets. Amortisation methods and useful lives are reviewed periodically including at each financial year end. Amortisation on additions and disposals during
the year is provided on proportionate basis.

Estimated useful lives of intangible assets are given below:

Category of assets Useful life (in years) |
Software and licenses 3
Customer contracts 8
Customer relationship 10

Goodwill is measurcd at cost less accumulated impairment loss. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for impairment annually, either
individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable.
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Derecognition of intangible assets
An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal (i.e., at the date the recipient obtains control) or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss arising upon derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit and
loss. when the asset is derecognised.

.

Impairment
Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit
risk exposure:

a) Financial assets which are measured at amortized cost e.g. other receivables, deposits etc.

b) Trade receivables or contract assets/unbilled receivables or another financial asset that result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 115.

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Company applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Therefore, the Company does not track changes in credit risk, but instead
recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Company has established a provision policy that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment. For other financial assets, expected credit loss is measured at the amount equal to twelve months
expected credit loss unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition, in which case those are measured at lifetime expected credit loss.

Write off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the
Company determines that the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off. However, financial
assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with Company’s procedures for the recovery of amount due.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s balance
sheet) when:

The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party
under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

‘When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks
and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues
to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

Impairment of non-financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 36, the Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s
(CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or Company of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is
written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of

money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an
appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

(This space is intentionally left blank)
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Leases

At inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Company as a lessee

The Company’s lease asset class primarily consists of leases for buildings. The Company, at the inception of a contract, assesses whether the contract is a lease or not a lease. A contract
is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for a consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether:

(i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset;
(ii) the Company has the right to obtain substantially all the econoric benefits from use of the asset throughout the period of use; and
(iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The cost of the right-of-use asset measured at inception shall comprise of the amount
of the initial measurement of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received, plus any initial direct costs
incurred and an estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying asset or restoring the underlying asset or site on which it is located. The right-of-
use assets is subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation, accumulated impairment losses, if any and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The right-
of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date to the end of the lease term. Right-of-use assets are tested for impairment whenever
there is any indication that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. Impairment loss, if any, is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date of the lease. The lease payments are discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company uses incremental borrowing rate. For leases with
reasonably similar characteristics, the Company, on a lease by lease basis, may adopt either the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease or the incremental borrowing rate for the
portfolio as a whole. The lease payments shall include fixed payments, variable lease payments, residual value guarantees, exercise price of a purchase option where the Company is
reasonably certain to exercise that option and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising an option to terminate the lease. The lease
liability is subsequently remeasured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability, reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made and
remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease modifications or to reflect revised in-substance fixed lease payments. The Company recognises the amount of the re-
measurement of lease liability due to modification as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset and Statement of Profit and Loss depending upon the nature of modification. Where the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced 1o zero and there is a further reduction in the measurement of the lease liability, the Company recognises any remaining amount of the
re-measurement in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Also refer last footnote to note 4b.

The Company has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. The
Company recognises the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Critical judgements in determining the lease term -

In determining the lease term, management considers all facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive to exercise an extension option, or not exercise a termination option.
Extension options (or periods after termination options) are only included in the lease term if the lease is reasonably certain to be extended (or not terminated).

For leases of buildings, the following factors are normally the most relevant:

(a) If there are significant penaities to terminate (or not extend), the Company is typically reasonably certain to extend (or not terminate).

(b) Otherwise, the Company considers other factors including historical lease durations and the costs and business disruption required to replace the leased asset.

Employee benefits
(i) Short-term employee benefits:

Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of receiving employee services are classified as short-term employee benefits. These benefits include salaries and wages, bonus,
incentives and ex-gratia. The undiscounted amount of shori-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for employee services is recognized as an expense for the related
service rendered by employees.

(ii) Post-employment benefits:

Defined contribation plans:

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays specified contributions to a separate entity and has no obligation to pay any further amounts.
The Company makes specified monthly contributions towards employee provident fund and employees state insurance to a Government administered scheme which is 2 defined
contribution plan. The Company's contribution is recognized as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss during the period in which the employee renders the related service.

Defined benefit plans:

The Company’s gratuity benefit scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Company’s net obligation in respect of a defined benefit plan is calculated by estimating the amount of future
benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present value.

The present value of the obligation under such benefit plan is determined by independent qualified actuary using the Projected Unit Credit Method which recognizes each period of
service that give rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation.

The obligation is measured at present values of estimated future cash flows. The discounted rates used for determining the present value are based on the market yields on Government
Securities as at the balance sheet dates. The Company classifies the gratuity as current and non-current based on the expected payments as per actuarial valuation report.

Actuarial gains or losses are recognised in other comprehensive income. Further, the profit or loss does not include an expected return on plan assets. Instead net interest recognised in
Statement of Profit and Loss is calculated by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The actual return on the
plan assets above or below the discount rate is recognised as part of re-measurement of net defined liability or asset through other comprehensive income.

Re-measurements comprising actuarial gains or losses and return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability) are not reclassified to
Atntement of Profit and Loss in subsequent periods.

/ »Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are recognised immediately in the Statement 4 Ppofit and Loss & \past

/service cost. [ = \ <
I ) | |

| The Company ﬁa:» cimsidered only such changes in legislation which have been enacted upto the balance sheet date for the purpose of determining defined benk it 4bligatioh.
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J-

Employee benefits (continued)

Compensated absences:

The employees can carry-forward a portion of the unutilised accrued compensated absences and utilise it in future service periods. The Company records an obligation for such
compensated absences in the period in which the employee renders the services that increase this entitlement. The obligation is measured by independent qualified actuary using the
Projected Unit Credit Method. Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as short-term employee benefit.

Taxation

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss except to the extent it relates to a business combination, or items
directly recognized in equity or in other comprehensive income.

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable (or receivable) on the taxable income for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable (or receivable) in respect of previous years. The
amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid (or received) after considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using
tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting dates.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts, and it is intended to realize the assets and settle the
liability on a net basis or simultaneously.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used
for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is also recognized in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax credits (if any). Deferred tax is not recognized for:

- temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or
loss at the time of transaction

- temporary differences related to investments in subsidiary and associates, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong
evidence that future taxable profit may not be available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent losses, the Company recognizes a deferred tax asset only to the extent that it has
sufficient taxable temporary differences or there is convincing other evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be realized.
Deferred tax assets recognized or unrecognized are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognized /reduced to the extent that it is probable / no longer probable respectively that the
related tax benefit will be realized.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date. The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the
reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority
on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realized
simultaneously.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised either in other comprehensive income (OCI). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the
underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the Balance Sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash excluding restricted cash balance and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding
bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash management. Any cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances with significant restrictions with regards
to the Company's ability to freely use it is disclosed appropriately by way of a foot note.

Non-current Assets held for sale and discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the entity that has been disposed of or is classified as held for sale and that represents a separate major line of business or geographical area
of operations, is part of a single coordinated plan to dispose of such a line of business or area of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale. The results of
discontinued operations are presented separately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The post-tax profit or loss of discontinued operations and the post-tax gain or loss recognised on the measurement to fair value less costs to sell or on the disposal of the assets
constituting the discontinued operation shall be disclosed separately as a single amount in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

An analysis of the single amount into the revenue, expenses and pre-tax profit or loss of discontinued operations, the related income tax expense as required by Ind AS 12 and the gain or
loss recognised on the measurement to fair value less costs to sell or on the disposal of the assets constituting the discontinued operation along with the related income tax expense
thereon as required by Ind AS 12 may be presented in the notes or in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(This space is intentionally left blank)



Medi Assist Insurance TPA Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)

n. Provisions (other than for employee benefits) and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognized when there is a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The expenses relating to a provision is presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss net of any reimbursement.
If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is
recognised as finance cost.

A provision for onerous contracts is measured at the present value of the lower of the expected cost of terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract.
Before a provision is established, the Company recognises any impairment loss on the assets associated with that contract.

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but will probably not, require an outflow of resources. When there is a
possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision disclosure is made.

A contingent asset is not recognised but disclosed in the Company's financial statements where an inflow of economic benefit is probable.

Commitments includes the amount of open purchase orders (net of advance) issued to parties for completion of assets. Provisions, contingent assets, contingent liabilities and
commitments are reviewed at each closing date.

0. Cash dividend

The Company recognises a liability to make cash distributions to equity holders when the distribution is authorised and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. As
per the corporate laws in India, a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the shareholders (in the case of interim dividend it is approved by the Board of Directors). A
corresponding amount is recognised directly in equity.

p- Share-based compensation:

The expenses relating to share-based payments in the Statement of Profit and Loss are recognised using fair value in accordance with Ind AS 102, Share-Based Payment. These Employee
Stock Options Scheme (“ESOS 2012”) granted are measured by reference to the fair value of the instrument at the date of grant.

The expense is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss with a corresponding increase to the employee stock option plan reserve, a component of equity. The equity instruments
generally vest in a graded manner over the vesting period. The fair value determined at the grant date is expensed over the vesting period of the respective tranches of such grants
(accelerated amortization).

When the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, the minimum expense recognised is the expense had the terms had not been modified, if the original terms of the award are met.
An additional expense is recognised for any modification that increases the total fair value of the share based payment transaction, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured
at the date of modification.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of diluted earnings per share

Medi Assist Healthcare Services Limited being the Holding Company, has given employee stock option scheme (ESOS) to the employees of the Company. The Company's eligible
employees as defined in the "ESOS 2013" scheme are entitled to ESOS of the Holding Company. Pursuant to Ind AS 102 ‘Share-based Payment’, the Company recognises an expense in
the Statement of Profit and Loss based on the fair value of the stock options as at grant date. The expenses are amortised over the vesting period. The corresponding credit is given to
other equity in the statement of changes in equity, because the award represents in substance equity contribution by the Holding Company. The equity instruments generally vest in a
graded manner over the vesting period. The fair value determined at the grant date is expensed over the vesting period of the respective tranches of such grants (accelerated
amortization). The cumulative expense recognised for stock options at each reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the
Company’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest.

q. Recent pronouncements on Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS):
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to
time. On March 31, 2023, MCA amended the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023, as below:

Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements

The amendments require companies to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their significant accounting policies. Accounting policy information, together with other
information, is material when it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions of primary users of general purpose financial statements. The Company does not expect this
amendment to have any significant impact in its financial staternents.

Ind AS 8 — Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

The amendments will help entities to distinguish between accounting policies and accounting estimates. The definition of a change in accounting estimates has been replaced with a
definition of accounting estimates. Under the new definition, accounting estimates are “monetary amounts in financial statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty”. Entities
develop accounting estimates if accounting policies require items in financial statements to be measured in a way that involves measurement uncertainty. The Company does not expect
this amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statements.

Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes

This amendment has narrowed the scope of the initial recognition exemption so that it does not apply to transactions that give rise to equal and offsetting temporary differences. The
effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2023. The Company has evaluated the amendment and there is no impact on its Standalone
financial statements

(This space is intentionally left blank)
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Medi Assist Insurance TPA Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements

(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in millions, unless vtherwise stated)

4 (a) Right-of-use assets

Particualars Buildi Total
Gross carrying value
Balance at April 01, 2021 386.94 386.94
Additions 24.36 2436
Disposals - .
Lease modification entered during the year (1.78) (1.78)
Balance at March 31, 2022 409.52 409.52
Additions 191.58 191.58
Disposals (26.93) (26.93)
Balance at March 31, 2023 574.17 574.17
Accumulated amortisation
Balance at April 01, 2021 154.28 154.28
For the year 80.57 8057
Disposals - -
Balance at March 31, 2022 234.85 234.85
For the year 91.18 91.18
Disposals (5.18) (5.18)
Balance at March 31, 2023 320.85 320.85
Net book value as at March 31, 2023 253.32 253.32
Net book value as at March 31, 2022 174.67 174.67
4 (b) Lease liabilities
A The following is the movement of lease liabilities
Particulars As at
March 31, 2022
Balance at April 01, 2021 297.25
Additions 23.86
Lease modification entered during the year (7.45)
Accretion of interest 22.92
Rent concession (6.62)
Payment (including interest) of lease liabilities (100.97)
Balance at March 31, 2022 228.99

. As at
Particulars March 31, 2023
Balance at April 01, 2022 228.99
Additions 177.95
Disposals (31.42)
Accretion of interest 21.69
Payment (including interest} of lease Liabilities {115.58)
Bal at March 31, 2023 277.63

B The following is the break-up of lease liabilities:

R As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Current lease liabilities 100.12 82.16
Non-current lease liabilities 177.51 146.83

Total 271.63 228.99
C The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities on an undiscounted basis:

} As at As at
Particulars March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Less than one year 118.16 100.18
One to five years 179.85 145.88

Total 298.01 250.06

D Amount recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss

The Company has applied weighted average incremental borrowing rate of 9% per annum for lease liabilities recognised in the balance sheet. The Company does not face a significant
liquidity with regards to its lease liability as the current assets are sufficient to meet the obligations related to lease liability as and when they falls due. The following are the amounts
recognised in the statement of profit and loss:

For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Interest expense on lease liabilities 21.69 22.92
Amortisation expense of right-of-use assets 91.18 80.57

10.10 5.67

Gain or (loss) for termination/modification of lease contract
Expense relating to short-term leases and low value assels- 8.72 14.31
presented under other expenses- Rent
Less: Rent concession due to COVID-19- presented under {6.62)

other expenses- Rent

During the year ended March 31, 2023, the Company incurred expenses amounting to Rs. 8.72 million (March 31, 2022: Rs. 14.31 million) for short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets. For the year ended 31 March 2023, the total cash outflows for leases, including short-term leases and low-value assets amounted to Rs. 128,3 million (March 31, 2022 :
Rs. 115.27 million).

The Company leases various office buildings. Rental contracts are generally made for fixed periods of 4 months to 9 years. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. The lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than the security deposits in the leased assets that are held by the
lessor.

// Duiring the year ended March 31, 2022, the Company received rent concessions as a consequence of COVID-19. Since, the change in lease payments is less than the consideration for
/€ ﬂ}é'lease immediately preceding the change and there was no substantive change to other terms and conditions of the lease, the Company has elected to apply the practical expedient
1l hich permits a lesses to_elect not to assess whether a COVID-19-related rent concession as a lease modification. Consequently, the change in lease payments resulting from the
r r'OVID-l9-re]ated rent concession is accounted for in the same way it would account for the change applying Ind AS 116 if the change were not a lease modification.
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Medi Assist Insurance TPA Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)

7 Non-current financial assets

7 (a) Other financial assets

Particul As at As at
e March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Unsecured, considered good
Financial assets at amortised cost
Security deposits 41.23 1248
Eamest money deposit 4.80 6.85
Bank deposits with more than 12 months maturity 3.68 5.79
Total 49.71 25.12
Refer note 31
8 Income tax assets (net)
Particul As at As at
articuiars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Advance tax, net of provisions [Provisions Rs. 1,007.14 million (March 31, 2022 Rs. 747.61 million)] 552.59 474.58
Income tax assets (net) 552.59 474.58
9 Deferred tax assets (net)
Particul As at As at
articufars March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Deferred tax assets
Provision for employee benefits 43.62 36.48
Lease liabilities 69.87 57.63
Allowance for expected credit losses on trade receivables, unbilled and other receivables, advances 43.63 58.90
Other provisions 8.97 8.04
Total deferred tax assets 166.09 161.05
Deferred tax liabilities
Right-of-use asset 63.75 43.96
Temporary difference arising from fair value adjustment of financial assets - Investments 4.03 12.23
Excess of depreciation on property, plant and equipment (including intangible assets) under Income-tax 43.13 52.79
Act, 1961 over depreciation under Companies Act, 2013
Total deferred tax liabilities 110.91 108.98
Deferred tax assets (net) (refer note 33) 55.18 52.07
10 Other non-current assets
Particul As at As at
AEHIEHISES March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Unsecured, considered good
Capital advances 24.59 0.78
Advances other than capital advances
Prepaid expenses 5.69 3.01
Total 30.28 3.79




Medi Assist Insurance TPA Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements
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11 (a) Investments

Particul As at As at
Articars March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
(i) Mutual funds at fair value through profit or loss (unquoted)
Investments in mutual funds 280.81 1,514.03
(i) Equity instrument at cost (fully paid-up) (Unquoted)
(a) Investment in subsidiary at cost*:
Medvantage Insurance TPA Private Limited (formerly known as United Healthcare 295.00 -
Parekh Insurance TPA Private Limited)
(refer note 37)
(b) Advance given for business acquisition™ - 50.00
Total 575.81 1,564.03
Aggregate value of unquoted investments 575.81 1,564.03
Also refer note 31

* The Company has acquired 400,400 shares representing 100% shares of Medvantage Insurance TPA Private Limited on February 13, 2023 after getting an in principle
approval from IRDAI during the year for a purchase consideration of Rs. 195 million. The Company has paid Rs.145 million during the year, post adjusting the advance given
for business acquisition amounting Rs. 50 million.

Further, the Company has increased its stake in Medvantage Insurance TPA Private Limited by further investing an amount of Rs. 100 million (166,945 shares) on February
17, 2023. These shares have been allotted in the name of the Company subsequent to the year end in the month of April 2023.

11 (b) Trade receivables

Particul As at As at
articulars March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
At amortised cost
Considered good - unsecured 390.43 359.64
Credit impaired - unsecured 132.98 196.20
Total receivables 523.41 555.84
Less: Allowance for expected credit losses* (132.98) (196.20)
Total (A) 390.43 359.64
Unbilled receivables
Considered good - unsecured
Unbilled receivables 792.80 686.40
Unsecured, considered doubtful
Unbilled receivables 7.49 8.38
Less: Allowance for expected credit losses* (7.49) (8.38)
Total (B) 792.80 686.40
Total (A+B) 1,183.23 1,046.04
The Company's exposure to credit risk and loss allowances are disclosed in Note 32(ii). Also refer note 31.
Trade receivable ageing:
As at March 31, 2023 Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Unbilled Not due  Less than 6 1-2 Years 2-3 More than 3 Total

6 Months Months Years Years

1 Year

Undisputed trade receivable - consigered good 792.80 32.56 26921 65.84 023 3.06 19.53 1,183.23

Undisputed trade receivable - which have significant - - - - - - - -
increase in credit risk

Undisputed trade receivable - credit impaired 7.49 - - 13.87 27.42 9.28 82.41 140.47
Disputed trade receivable - considered good - - - - - - - -
Disputed trade receivable - which have significant - - - - - - - .
increase in credit risk

Disputed trade receivable - credit impaired - - = - - - -

Total 800.29 32.56 26921  79.71 27.65 12.34 101.94 1,323.70
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Medi Assist Insurance TPA Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)

As at March 31, 2022
Particulars Unbilled Notdue  Less than 6 1-2 Years 2-3 More than 3 Total
6 Months Months Years Years
1 Year
Undisputed trade receivable - consigered good 686.40 79.06 20598 38.86 17.21 10.89 7.64 1,046.04

Undisputed trade receivable - which have significant - - - -
increase in credit risk

Undisputed trade receivable - credit impaired 8.38 - 12.28 7.34 8.34 3329 134.95 204.58
Disputed trade receivable - considered good - - - - -
Disputed trade receivable - which have significant - - - - - -
increase in credit risk

Disputed trade receivable - credit impaired - . . - - :
Total 694.78 7906  218.26 46.20 25.55 44.17 142.59 1,250.62

*Set out below is the movement in the allowance for expected credit losses of trade receivables:

Particulars Asat As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Opening balance 204.58 291.42
Provision for expected credit losses (net of reversals) 16.73 15.65
Bad debts written off (80.84) (102.49)
140.47 204.58

Closing balance

The Company does not charge any interest on overdue payments. Further, the average credit period ranges between 80 to 100 days.
No trade receivables are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other person. Further no trade receivables are due from firms
or private companies respectively in which any director is a pariner, a director or a member.

11 (c¢) Cash and cash equivalents

. As at As at
Particulars March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
At amortised cost
Cash on hand 022 0.15
Balances with banks

-In current accounts 194.69 111.53
Total 194.91 111.68
The Company's exposure to credit risk is disclosed in note 32 (if). Also refer note 31.
11 (d) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents above

. As at As at
Particulars March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
At amortised cost
- Deposits with original maturity of more than three months but less than twelve months* 689.33 454.91
-In deposits with original maturity of less than 3 months** 836.00 -

Total 1,525.33 454.91

* The above includes bank deposits amounting to Rs 99.17 million (March 31, 2022: Rs 22.18 million) which are under lien with bank towards bank guarantee issued

towards insurance companies.
** It includes fixed deposit (linked to Escrow account) with a schedule bank which represents money earmarked for a proposed acquisition. However, the interest accrued on

the same shall be to the exclusive benefit of the Company.

The Company's exposure to credit risk is disclosed in note 32 (ii). Also refer note 31.

(This space is intentionally left blank)
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11 (e) Other financial assets

12

Particul As at As at
SEgemars March 31,2023  March 31, 2022
At amortised cost
Considered good - unsecured
Security deposits 11.55 30.36
Earnest money deposit 13.85 6.73
Other receivables 98.04 100.27
Advances to employees 9.15 4.88
Accrued interest income 5.59 2.88
Unsecured, considered doubtful
Other receivables 13.32 13.32
Less: Allowance for doubtful receivables (13.32) (13.32)
Security deposits - 0.08
Less: Provision for security deposits - (0.08)
Total 138.18 145.12
The Company's exposure to credit risk is disclosed in note 32 (ii}. Also refer note 31.
Other current assets
Particul As at As at
articulars March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Unsecured considered good
Balances with government authorities 125.98 144.97
Advances to suppliers 40.35 13.17
Prepaid expenses 37.60 13.53
Considered doubtful - unsecured
Advance to supplier 19.58 16.14
Less: Provision for advance to supplier (19.58) (16.14)
Total 203.93 171.67
(This space is intentionally left blank)
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Medi Assist Insurance TPA Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements
(4!l amounts are in Indian Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)}

13 Equity share capital

. As at As at
Particulars March 31,2023  March 31, 2022
Authorised share capital:

6,020,000 (March 31, 2022: 6,020,000) equity shares of Rs 10 each 60.20 60.20
60.20 60.20
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up shares:
4,012,370 (March 31, 2022: 4,012,370) equity shares of Rs 10 each 40.12 40.12
Total 40.12 40.12
a) Reconciliation of the number of shares ontstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period:

. As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

Particulars

Number of shares Amount  Number of shares Amount
Equity shares
At the beginning of the year 4,012,370 40.12 4,012,370 40.12
Share issued during the year - - - -
Balance at the end of the reporting year 4,012,370 40.12 4,012,370 40.12

b) Terms/rights attached to equity shares:

The Company has only one class of shares referred to as equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10/- each. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. Voting rights cannot be
exercised in respect of shares on which any call or other sum presently payable has not been paid. Failure to pay any amount called up on shares may lead to forfeiture of shares.

The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the sharcholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive any of the remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The
distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

c) Shares held by holding Company:
Out of equity shares issued by the Company, shares held by its holding Company are as below:

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Number of shares Amount  Number of shares Amount
Medi Assist Healthcare Services Limited (includes 5 equity shares held jointly with one of the directors)
4,012,370 (March 31, 2022: 4,012,370) equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up 4,012,370 40.12 4,012,370 40.12
d) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in th Company
Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Number of shares % of Holdin Number of shares % of Holding
Medi Assist Health i imited (includes 5 equi held jointly with f the directs
edi Assist Healthcare Services Limited (includes 5 equity shares held jointly with one of the directors) 4012370 100.00% 4012370 100.00%

4,012,370 (March 31, 2022: 4,012,370) equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up

As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/ members and other declarations received from shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both

legal and beneficial ownerships of shares.

€) Shares reserved for issue under employee stock option scheme

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31. 2022
Number of options Amount  Number of options Amount
Under employee stock option scheme, 2012: Nil (March 31, 2022: 304,940) equity shares of Rs. 10 each (refer 104.940 1.05

note 29, 29A and 30)

f) The Company has not allotted any fully paid up equity share by way of bonus shares, or in pursuant to contract without payment being received in cash nor has bought back any class of equity shares
during the period of five year immediately preceding the balance sheet date.

g) The Company’s objective for capital management is to maximise shareholder value, safeguard business continuity and support the growth of the Company. The Company determines the capital
requirement based on annual operating plans, long-term and other strategic investment plans. The funding requirements are met through equity and operating cash flows generated. The Company is not
subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.

(This space is intentionally left blank)
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(Al amounts are in Indian Rupees in miilions, unless otherwise stated)

i) Details of equity shares (of Rs. 10 each fully paid up) held by promoters

As at March 31, 2023

Promoter name No of shares at the Change during | No of shares at the | % of total shares | % Change duiring
beginning of the year the year end of the year the year

Medi Assist Healthcare Services 4,012,370 - 4,012,370 100.00% -

Limited

Total 4,012,370 - 4,012,370 100.00% -

As at March 31, 2022

Promoter name No of shares at the Change during | No of shares at the % of total shares | % Change duiring
beginning of the year the year end of the year the year

Medi Assist Healthcare Services 4,012,370 - 4,012,370 100.00% -

Limited

Total 4,012,370 - 4.012.370 100.00% -

14 Other equity

; As at Asat

Parficnlars March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
(a) Retained earnings

Balance at the beginning of the year 2,042.06 1,604.85

Movement during the year

Total comprehensive income for the year (including other comprehensive (expense)/income) 769.64 43721

Towards employee stock option cancellation (refer note 30) (119.69) .

Dividend paid during the year* (200.00) -

Balance at the end of the year 2,492.02 2,042.06
(b) Employee stock option reserve

Balance at the beginning of the year 21.57 21.57

Adjustment towards employee stock option cancellation (refer note 30) (21.57) -

Balance at the end of the year - 21.57
(c) Other equity

Balance at the beginning of the year 8.04 -

Movement during the year 11.67 8.04

Balance at the end of the year 19.71 8.04

Total (a+b+c) 2,511.72 2,071.67

Nature and purpose of reserves

(a) Retained earnings

Retained earnings are the profits that the Company has carned till date less dividends or other distributions to sharcholders. Retained earnings includes re-measurement loss/(gain) on defined benefit
plans, net of taxes that will not be reclassified to statement of profit and loss. Retained earnings is a free reserve available to the Company.

(b) Employee stock option reserve

The employee stock option outstanding account is used to recognize grant date fair value of the options issued to the employees of Company and its Holding Company under the Company's stock
option plan. For futher details refer note 30 for Employee stock option scheme details.

(c) Other equity

Other equity is mainly on account of ESOP expense incurred by the Company on account of ESOP options issued by Holding Company (refer note 30).

*The Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting held on March 11, 2023 declared an interim dividend of Rs. 49.84 per equity share. Dividends declared by the Company are based on the profits
available for distribution and the same has been distributed during the year.

o
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15 Provisions (non-current)

Particul o - As at o As at
articulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Provision for employee benefits:
Gratuity (refer note 28) 119.01 103.16
Total 119.01 103.16
16 Current financial liabilities
16 (a) Trade payables
Particul o As at As at
ki i March31,2023  March 31,2022
At amortised cost
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (refer, note 40 for details of dues to micro and
small enterprises) 68.02 31.36
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises (refer note 39 for trade
payables to related to related parties) 258.38 429.50
Tatal 32640 460.86
Refer note 31
Trade payable ageing schedule:
As at March 31. 2023 Outstanding for the following periods from due date of pavments
Particulars Unbilied dues Not due Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 vears More than 3 vears Total
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 17.71 436 44.84 1.11 - - 68.02
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small
enterprises 86.77 71.49 74.07 19.22 4.02 2.81 258.38
Disputed dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - . . . - -
Disputed dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises - - - - - - -
Total 104.48 75.85 118.91 2033 4.02 2.81 32640
As at March 31, 2022 Outstanding for the following periods from due date of payments -
Particulars Unbilled dues Not due Less than 1 year 1-2 vears 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 8.77 372 0.28 1.37 - - 14.15
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small
enterprises 110.51 274.13 40.33 1.73 0.16 2.65 429.50
Disputed dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - 5.94 9.41 1.19 0.68 - 17.21
Disputed dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises - - - - - - -
Total 119.29% 283.78 50.02 4.29 0.83 2.65 460.86
Trade payables {other than oulstanding dues of micro and small enlerprises) are non interest bearing and are usually settled within 70 - 100 days
16 (b) Other financial liabilities*
Particul As at As at
Erticuars March31,2023  March 31,2022
At amortised cost
Employee benefits payable 5237 3698
Creditors for capital goods 11.32 -
Other payables (refer note 39 for other receivables from related parties) 4.05 41.39
Liabilities towards employee stock option (refer note 30) 141.25 -
Total 208.99 78.37
*refer note 31
17  Contract Liabilities
. As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Contract liabilities 1,664.64 1,536.96
Tatal 1.664.64 1.536.96
Also refer note 20.
18 Provislons (current)
Particul I As at T As at
ardieutars March31,2023  March 31,2022
Provision for employee benefits:
Gratuity (refer note 28) 50.34 36.50
Employee compensated absences 3.99 532
(A) 54.33 41.82
Provision for clalms disallowed:
Balance at the beginning of the vear 19.78 18.78
Provision created during the year 70.83 55.68
Reversed/ Utilisation during the year 166.10) (54.68)
Balance at the end of the year (B) 24.51 19.78
Total (A+B) 78.84 61.60
19 Other current liabilities
: As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Sulufu!}' fralithities payable* 79.07 166.64
- Total ¢ o 79.07 166.64
_".' ¥ '.'includcs stamtr;l\ ¢hiey with respect to GST, withalding taxes, provident fund etc. .-‘"J' St 2
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20 Revenue from contracts with customers

For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31,2022
Revenue from operations:
Third party administration (TPA) fees 4,976.71 4,174.65
Add: opening contract liability 1,536.96 1,216.08
6,513.67 5,390.73
Less: closing contract liability (1,664.64) (1,536.96)
Total income from sale of services 4,849.03 3,853.77

(A) Disaggregated revenue information

—

In the following table, revenues from contracts with customers is disaggregated by major service lines and contract type. The Company believes that this disaggregation best depicts
how the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenues and cashflows are effected by industry, market and other economic factors.

Particul For the year ended For the year ended
articulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Major products/ service lines
Income from services 4,849.03 3,853.77
4,849.03 3,853.77
Timing of transfer of goods and services
Services rendered over time 4,849.03 3,853.77
4,849.03 3,853.77
Contract counterparties
Govemment schemes (assurance and insurance) 536.19 471.15
Insurance companises 4,312.84 3,382.62
4,849.03 3,853.77
(B) Contract balances
(i) The following table provides information about assets and liabilities from contract with customers.
Particul. Note As at As at
SUGICRIRES March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Trade receivables 11 (b) 1,183.23 1,046.04
Contract liabilities 17 1,664.64 1,536.96

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and the average credit period ranges between 80 to 100 days.

The contract liabilities primarily relate to billings in excess of revenues. The billing schedules agreed with customers could include periodic performance-based payments. Invoices are

payable within contractually agreed credit period.

(ii) Significant changes in the contract liabilities balances during the year are as follows:

Particul As at As at
il March 31, 2023 March 31,2022
Movement in contract liabilities:

Opening balance 1,536.96 1,216.08
Revenue recognised that was included in the contract liability balance at the beginning of the year (1,536.96) (1,216.08)
Increase due to invoicing during the year (excluding amounts recognised as revenue) during the year 1,664.64 1,536.96
Closing balance 1,664.64 1,536.96

(C) Transaction price allocated to remaining performance obligations

The following table includes revenue expected to be recognised in the future related to performance obligations that are unsatisfied (or partially satisfied) at the reporting date.

. As at As at
EAEGEiEe March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Within 1 year 1,664.64 1,535.32
1-3 years - 1.64
Total 1,664.64 1,536.96
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21 Other income

. For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31,2022
Other non-operating income
Interest income on:

term deposits 35.92 26.25
financial assets at amortised cost 2.56 1.83

Net gain on financial assets measured at fair value through profit and loss 8.64 32.85
Profit on sale of investments in mutual funds 53.15 5.64
Gain on modification / termination of lease contract 10.10 5.67
Creditors/ provision no longer required written back 12.40 5.44
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment (net) 0.72 0.34
Miscellaneous income 0.13 1.14
Total 123.62 79.16

22 Employee benefits expense

) For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Salaries, bonus and allowances 1,546.04 1,251.14
Contribution to provident fund and other funds (refer note 28) 87.19 75.12
Gratuity (refer note 28) 30.92 25.53
Employee stock option compensation expense (refer note 29 and 30) 11.67 8.04

Staff welfare expenses 51.91 45.33
Total 1,727.73 1,405.16
23 Finance costs
. For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Interest on lease liabilities (refer note 4(b)) 21.69 22,92
Bank guarantee commission 0.64 0.79
Other interest costs (MSME interest) 1.12 1.20
Total 23.45 24.91
24 Depreciation and amortisation expenses
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (refer note 4 (a)) 79.87 85.67
Amortisation of right-of-use assets (refer note 5) 91.18 80.57
Amortisation of intangible assets (refer note 6) 32.51 33.17
Total 203.56 199.41
(This space is intentionally left blank}
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25 Other expenses

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Subcontracting expenses 59533 545.30
Software subscription charges (refer note 39) 573.91 473.37
Printing and stationery 144.28 141.36
Legal and professional 137.72 97.84
Repair and maintenance - others 85.70 57.71
Postage and communication 84.55 81.14
Travelling and conveyance 75.45 38.66
Claims disallowed 70.83 55.68
Insurance awareness initiative 40.04 22.11
Power and fuel charges 36.43 23.57
Housekeeping charges 33.34 21.79
Payment to auditors** 10.45 726
Allowance for expected credit losses on trade receivables and unbilled receivables 16.67 15.66
Security expenses 14.24 12.19
Enrolment card charges 12.71 31.68
Rent* 8.72 7.69
Corporate social responsibility (refer note 36) 8.20 6.70
Insurance 7.39 3.76
Provision for doubtful advances 4.00 0.55
Loss on scrapping of asset 3.17 9.70
Rates and taxes 2.96 13.46
Director sitting fees 1.70 0.70
Advances written off 1.26 7.14
Bad debts written off 80.84 71.32
Less: utilisation of provision (80.84) (71.32)
Miscellaneous expenses 5.82 2.78
Total 1,974.87 1.677.81
* Represents lease rentals for short term leases and leases of low-value assets.
** Payment to auditors (excluding Goods and services tax)

. For the year ended For the year ended
EREtiisTs March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
As auditor:

Audit fee 9.95 7.26
In other capacity:
Other services (certification fecs) 0.50 0.00
Total 10.45 7.26
(This space is intentionally left blank)
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26

27

Contingent liabilities and commitments

Particul Note As at As at
ki 4 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Contingent liabilities:
i) Bonus as per the Payment of Bonus (Amendment) Act, 2015 for the period from 1 April 2014 to 31 (a) 5.71 5.71
March 2015
i) Demands raised by income-tax authoritics for assessment years 2017-18 on account of disallowance of 22.46 22.46
amortisation on goodwill and prior period expenditure and disallowance u/s 14A to the extent applicable
[Amount paid to Income tax authority under protest of Rs. 8.02 million (31 March 2022: 8.02 million)]
iii} Disallowed w/s 40(a)(ia} of the Income-tax Act, 1961, for payments made to various hospitals during (b) 464.96 464.96
the financial year 2007-08 and 2008-09
iv) Employee Provident Fund (<) - _
v} Demands raised by income tax authorities for assessment years 2018-19 and 2020-21 on account of
" A 3 50.77 30.67
disallowance of amortization of intangible assets.
Commitments:
Bank guarantee (d) 171.74 180.83
4.33 4.70

Estimated amount of contracts, remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for

Notes:

(a) The Payment of Bonus (Amendment) Act, 2015 was notified by the Government of India with retrospective effect from 1 April 2014. The Honorable High Court, Karnataka based on the writ petition no 5272/2016 and
$311/2016, has vide its order dated 2 February 2016, stayed the operation of the said notification for the financial year 2014-15. The obligation to pay the bonus for the financial year 2014-15 will arise only if the High Court
disposes off the writ petition in favour of the Government. Hence, the Company has taken a view that an amount of Rs 5.71 million which is the approximate statutory bonus liability, for the eligible employees in respect of
financial year 2014-15, has been considered as an contingent liability.

(b) As per Income tax order, the officer has disallowed w/s 40(a)(ia) on payments made to various hospitals during the financial year 2007-08 and 2008-09 totaling to Rs. 118.92 million Rs. 964.75 million
respectively and accordingly raised a demand of Rs. 29.71 million and Rs. 435.25 million u/s 143(3) of the IT Act respectively against Dedicated Healthcare Services TPA (India) Private Limited (DHS). The Company filed an
appeal against these above orders as the payments to hospitals were made from the funds received from insurance companies were an ad and all pay were adjusted against the ad ived. The payments were not
claimed as an expenditure, hence, these cannot be disallowed under said section. The Company received favorable orders from CIT(A) on § August 2012, ITAT on 10 December 2014, and the High Court on 30 November 2015.
However, the Income Tax department has filed an appeal with the Honorable Supreme Court of India. Further, the Company had acquired DHS on dated 30 September 2016 and pursuant to the merger order dated 6 April 2018,
DHS merged with the Company from the appointed date specified in the Scheme i.e. 1 October 2016,

(¢) In light of judgment of Honourable Supreme Court dated 28 February 2019 on the definition of “Basic Wages™ under the Employees Provident Funds & Misc. Provisions Act, 1952 and based on Company evaluation, there
are significant uncertainties and numerous interpretative issues relating to the judgement and hence, it is unclear as to whether the clarified definition of Basic Wages would be applicable prospectively or retrospectively. The
amount of the obligation therefore cannot be measured with sufficient reliability for past periods. The Company will evaluate its position and update its provision, if required, on receiving further clarity on the subject. The

Company does not expect any material impact of the same.

Earnings per share ("EPS")

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders
Net profit from continuing operations for the year attributable to the equity share holders (a) 784.34 449.18
Net profit/ (loss) for the period attributable to the equity share holders from discontinued operation (b}
(12.66} 7.51
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for basic EPS (c)* 4,012,370 4,012,370
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for diluted EPS (d)** (also refer note 30) 4,012,370 4,121,926
Basic eaming per share of Rs.10 each from continuing operations [a/c] 195.48 111.95
Diluted earning rer share of Rs.10 each from continuing operations [a/d] 195.48 108.97
Basic eamning per share of Rs.10 each (for discontinued operations) [b/c] (3.16) 1.87
Diluted eaming per share of Rs.10 each (for discontinued operations; |b/d] (also refer note 30} (3.16) 1.87
Basic eaming per share of Rs.10 each (for continuing and discontinued operations) [(a+b)/c) 192.33 113.82
Diluted earning pcr share of Rs.10 each ( for continuiny; and discontinued operations) | (a+b/d| (also refer note 30) 192.33 110.80
* Comp ion of weighted average ber of equity shares used in calculating basic earning per share is set out below:
Particul - For the year ended For the year ended
articulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Opening balance 4,012,370 4,012,370
Movement during the vear - - -
Weighted average number of equity shares 4,012,370 4,012,370
** Comp ion of weighted average ber of equity shares used in calculating diluted earning per share is set out below:
Parti _l For the year ended For the year ended
arteutars - 3 3 March 31,2023 Mareh 31,2022
Opening balance 4,012,370 4,065,361
Effect of dilutive potential equity shares:
Employee stock options - 56,565
‘Weiithted averace number of equity shares 4,012,370 4,121,926
In computing dilutive earning per share, only potential equity shares that are dilutive i.e. which reduces earnings per share or increases loss per share are included
(This space is intentionally left blank)
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Medi Assist Insurance TPA Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)

28 Employee benefits

a)

b)

The Company contributes to the following post-employment plans.

Defined contribution plans:

The contributions paid/ payable to employee provident fund, employees state insurance scheme, employees pension schemes and other funds, are determined under the relevant
approved schemes and / or statutes and are recognised as expense in the statement of profit and loss during the period in which the employee renders the related service. There
are no further obligations other than the contributions payable to the approved trusts/ appropriate authorities.

The Company makes contributions, determined as a specified percentage of employees salaries, in respect of qualifying employees towards employee provident fund and
employees state insurance, which are defined contribution plans. The Company has no obligation other than to make the specified contribution. The contributions are charged to
the statement of profit and loss as they accrue. The amount recognized as an expense towards contribution to provident fund and employee state insurance for the period
aggregated to Rs. 87.19 million (March 31, 2022: Rs. 75.85 million).

Defined benefit plans:

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The plan entitles an employee who has rendered at least five years of
continuous service to receive 15 days salary for every completed year of service or part thereof in excess of six months based on the rate of last drawn salary (basic plus dearness
allowance) by the employee concemed. The Company's liability is actuarially determined (using the Projected Unit Credit method) at the end of each year. Actuarial gains/
(losses) are recognised under other comprehensive income in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Based on the actuarial valuation obtained in this respect, the following table sets out the details of the employee benefit obligation and the plan assets as at balance sheet date:

. As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Defined benefit obligation 174.33 146.04
Fair value of plan assets 4.98) (6.38)
Net defined benefit obligation 169.35 139.66
Current liabilities (refer note 18) 50.34 36.50
Non-current liabilities (refer note 15) 119.01 103.16
Reconciliation of the net defined benefit liability
The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for net defined benefit liability and its components.

Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit obligation

. As at As at
Fargienii March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Balance at the beginning of the year 146.04 101.28

Benefits paid (13.99) (14.76)
Current service cost 24.03 2035
Interest cost 7.16 4.92
Actuarial (gains)/ losses recognised in other comprehensive income
Changes in financial assumptions (11.44) (1.77)
Experience adjustment 14.27 27.95
Effect of acquisition / (divestiture)* - (0.38)
Transfer in/(out)** 8.26 8.45
Balance at the end of the year 174.33 146.04

* During the previous year, the Company has transferred certain employees to an entity outside the Mediassist group of companies. Effect of acquisition/ (divestiture) represents

the gratuity liability transferred by the Company to the outside entity pertaining to the transferred employees valued by the independent actuary.

** During the year, the Company has transferred in certain employees from its subsidiary company. Transfer in represents the gratuity liability transferred to the Company by its

subsidiary Company pertaining to the transferred employees valued by the independent actuary.

Reconciliation of present value of plan assets

. As at As at
Farticutag March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Balance at the beginning of the year 6.38 6.50

Contributions paid by the employer 12.21 14.23

Benefits paid (13.99) (14.76)

Interest income 0.27 0.27
Return on planned assets recognised in other comprehensive income

Re-measurements on plan assets — loss/ (gain) 0.10 0.16
Balance at the end of the vear 4.98 6.38

(This space is intentionally left blank)



Medi Assist Insurance TPA Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements

(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)
28 Employee benefits (continued)

=

iif.

=t

iv.

Expense recognised in Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss

ii,

For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Current service cost 24.03 20.35
Interest cost 7.16 4.92
Less: Interest income 0.27 0.27
Total 30.92 25.54
Expense recognised in other comprehensive income
For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Changes in financial assumptions (11.44) (1.77)
Experience adjustment 14.27 27.95
Re-measurements on plan assets — gain/ (loss) (0.10) (0.16)
Total 2.73 26.02
Plan assets
Plan assets comprise the following:
Particul As at As at
ARGERISES March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Managed by - Life Insurance Corporation of India Limited and Reliance Nippon Life Insurance (4.98) (6.38)
Total (4.98) (6.38)
The 100% of the plan assets have been invested with insurance Company in non-unit linked.
The Company expects to pay Rs. 50 million in its contribution to defined benefit plan in financial year 2023-24 (previous year 36.5 million).
The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of reporting period is 2 years (31 March 2022: 2 years).
Actuarial assumptions
The following were the principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date (expressed as weighted averages).
Particul As at As at
articulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Discount rate 7.10% 4.90%
Expected return 4.90% 4.50%
Future salary growth 8.00% 8.00%
Mortality rate 1ALM 2012-14 Ult IALM 2012-14 Ult
Rate of employee turnover 35.00% 35.00%
Assumptions regarding future mortality have been based on published statistics and mortality tables
Sensitivity analysis
Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the defined benefit
obligation by the amount shown below:
, As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Particulars
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Discount rate (1% movement) (4.50) 4.75 (4.24) 4,49
Future salary growth (1% movement) 4.67 (4.50) 4.32 (4.16)
Rate of emplovee turnover (1% movement) (0.59] 0.61 (0.80) 0.84
The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligation as a result of reasonable changes in key
assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period. Negative amounts represents decrease and positive amounts represents increase in gratuity liability respectively.
Expected future cash flows
) As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Particulars - - =
Discounted Undiscounted Discounted Undiscounted
1¥ Following year 67.86 70.22 54.65 55.98
2" Following year 52.34 58.01 43.95 47.22
3" Foliowing year 41.64 49.43 35.25 39.73
4® Following year 36.58 46.51 29.56 34.95
5" Following year 28.69 39.06 2314 — 28.70
héredfict 57.18 91.77 49\ 6143
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Medi Assist Insurance TPA Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)

28 Employee benefits (continued)
vi. Description of Risk Exposures:

Valuations are based on certain assumptions, which are dynamic in nature and vary over time. As such Company is exposed to various risks as follow -

a) Salary increases- Actual salary increases will increase the plan’s liability. Increase in salary increase rate assumption in future valuations will also increase the liability.

b) Investment risk- If plan is funded then assets liabilities mismatch and actual investment return on assets lower than the discount rate assumed at the last valuation date can
impact the liability.

¢) Discount rate- Reduction in discount rate in subsequent valuations can increase the plan’s liability.

d) Mortality- Actual deaths & disability cases proving lower or higher than assumed in the valuation can impact the liabilities.

€) Withdrawals- Actual withdrawals proving higher or lower than assumed withdrawals and change of withdrawal rates at subsequent valuations can impact plan’s liability.

(c) Other long-term employee benefits:

The Company provides for compensated absences to its employees. The employees can carry-forward a portion of the unutilised accrued compensated absences and utilise it in
future service years. During the year ended March 31, 2023, the Company has incurred an expense on compensated absences amounting to Rs. (1.32) million [March 31, 2022:
Rs. 1.15 million]. The Company determines the expense for compensated absences basis the actuarial valuation of the present value of the obligation, using the projected unit
credit method.

(d) The Holding Company Medi Assist Health Care Services Limited has instituted a self fanded scheme for providing hospitalization benefits for all employees for the Group. Medi
Assist Insurance TPA Private Limited as a part of group has availed the same scheme and extended the benefits to its own employees.

(This space is intentionally left blank)
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Medi Assist Insurance TPA Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements
(All amovints are in Indian Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)

31 Financial instroments — Fair values and risk management

A, Accounting classification and fair values

As at March 31, 2023 L B

Particulars Carrving amount R Fair value R
- FYTPL * FYOCI**  Amortised cost _Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets #

Non-current

Other financial assets:

Security deposits - 41.23 41.23 - - - -

Earnest money deposit - 4.80 4.80 - - - -

Bank deposits with more than 12 months maturity - 368 3.68 - - - -

Current

Investments in Mutual funds 280.81 - - 280.81 280.81 - - 280.81

Trade receivables - - 1,183.23 1,183.23 - - -

Cash and cash equivalents - - 194.91 194.91 - - -

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents - 1,525.33 1,525.33 - -

above -

Other financial assets - - 138.18 138.18 - - - -

Total 280.81 - 3,091.36 3,372.17 280.81 - - 280.81

Financial liabilities #

Non-current

Lease liabilities - - 177.51 177.51 - - -

Current

Lease liabilities - - 100.12 100.12 - - - -

Trade payables - - 326.40 326.40 - - - -

Other financial liabilities - - 208.99 208.99 - - - -

Total - - 813.02 813.02 - - -

* FVTPL - fair value through profit and loss
** FVOCI - fair value through other comprehensive income

# The management assessed that other current financial assets (loans to employees, sccurity deposit etc.), cash and cash equivalents, bank balances, trade receivables, trade payables, leasc liabilities and other financial liabilities
approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

The fair values of the mutual funds are based on NAV at the reporting date

As at March 31, 2022 -
Particulars Carrying amount Falr value .
FVTPL * FVOCI **  Amortised cost Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets #
Non-current
Other financial assets:
Security deposils - - 1248 12.48 - - -
Earnest money deposit - - 6.85 6.85 - - -
Bank deposits with more than 12 months maturity - - 579 579 - - -
Current
Investments in Mutual funds 1,514.03 - - 1,514.03 1,514.03 - - 1,514.03
Trade receivables - - 1,046.04 1,046.04 - - -
Cash and cash equivalents - - 111.68 111.68 - - -
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents - 454.91 454.91 - - -
above -
Other financial assets - - 145.12 145.12 - - - -
Total 1.514.03 - 1.782.87 3,296.90 1.514.03 - - 1,514.03
Financial liabilities #
Non-current
Lease liabilities - - 146.83 146.83 - - -
Current
Lease liabilities - - 82,16 82.16 - - -
Trade payables - - 460.86 460.86 - - -
Other financial liabilities - - 78.37 78.37 - - -
Total - - 768.22 768.22 - - - -
There has been no transfer between levels during the year

* FVTPL - fair value through profit and loss

** FVOCI - fair value through other comprehensive income
# The management assessed that other current financial assets (loans to employees, security deposit etc.), cash and cash equivalents, bank bal , trade bles, trade payables, lease liabilities and other financial liabilities

approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

The fair values of the mutual funds are based on NAV at the reporting date

B. Measurement of fair values
The following methods and ptions were used to estimate the fair values:

a) The fair values of the units of mutual fund schemes are based on net asset value at the reporting date.
b) All other financial assets except mutual funds and financial liabilities are recognised at amortised cost. Hence, there are no financial assets/ liabilities classified under Level 2 and Level 3.

(This space is intentionally left blank)
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32 Financial risk management

Risk management framework

The Company’s

has overall responsibility for the establist and ight of the risk fr k.

The C: ’s i i with the risk

P D

policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company. The management

is assisted in its oversight role by intemal andit. Internal audit undertakes both regular and ad-hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the management.
The Company's principal financial liabilities comprise trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include

investments, trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents, bank balances and security deposits that are out of regular business operations.
Mi of bility of trade receivables: During the year, the Company camed out a Jetailed T-Wise of the re
created an allowance for expected credit losses on trade receivables which the as

The Company has expasure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:
» Market risk;
= Credit risk; and
» Liquidity risk
(i) Market risk

bility of the trade receivables. Basis that assessment, the Company has

1 instr The objective of market risk management is to

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices — such as interest rates and equity prices — will affect the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of fi

manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return. Material investments within the portfolio are managed on an individual basis and all buy and sell decisions are approved by

the appropriate authority.

The Company’s fixed rate fixed deposit are carried at amortised cost. They are therefore not subject to interest rate risk as defined in Ind AS 107, since neither the carrying amount nor the future cash flows will fluctuate because

of a changes in markel interest rates.

(a) Foreign currency risk
The Company primarily renders services and avails goods and services in domestic currency i.e. Indian rupees. Hence, no exposure to currency risk.

(b) Equity price risk

The Company's investment in listed and unlisted equity and preference securities are susceptible to market price risk arising from uncertainties about the future value of investment in these securities. The Company manages
these price risks through strategic investments and placing limits on individual investments. The investments reports are submitted to the senior management and the Board reviews and approves these investment decisions.

Exposure in mutual funds

The Company manages the surplus funds majorly through investments in mutual fund schemes. The price of investment in these mutual fund schemes is reflected though Net Asset Value (NAV) declared by the Asset
Management Company on daily basis as reflected by the movement in the NAV of invested schemes. The Company is exposed to price risk on such Investments. The investments reports are submitted to the senior management

and the Board reviews and approves these investment decisions.

(¢) Interest rate risk
The Company has no borrowings. Hence, no exposure to interest rate risk.

(ii) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial Joss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company's receivables from customers.

The carrying amount of following fi ial assets rep the i credit
a. Trade receivables

b, Unbilled receivables

c. Cash and bank balances

d. Loans receivables

e. Other financial assets

(a) Trade receivable and contract assets
The Company's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual ch
which the Company grants credit terms in the normal course of business.

istics of each

ding balances. A

The Company individually monitors the sanctioned credit limits as against the
at periodic intervals.

The Company establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its estimate of expected losses in respect of trade receivables and loans receivables.

The maximum exposure to credit nisk for trade receivables was as follows:

. Credit risk is managed through credit approvals and continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to

dingly, the Company makes specific provisions against such trade receivables wherever required and monitors the same

. Asat As at
Sarticutus March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Trade receivables 52341 555.84
Unbilled receivables 800.29 694.78

Total 1,323.70 1,250.62
Impairment
_The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade receivables during the vear was as follows:

. As at As at
Rarticulars March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Balance at the beginning of the year 196.20 248.67
Impairment loss gnized (from inuing operations and di: d operation) 17.62 14.17
Amounts utilised (80.84; (66.64)

132.98 196.20

Balance at the end of the year

Management assessment of recoverability of trade receivables

Trade recejvables forms a significant part of the financial assets carried at amortized cost. The Company has performed detailed customer wise specific assessment of recoverability of the trade receivables and has accordingly

[2 21 detailed

made by N provision made towards trade

recognised the Impairment loss. Further, the Company is closely monitoring the developments across various business lines. Basis the
receivables is considered adequate,

(b) Unbilied receivables

Unbilled receivables forms a significant part of the financial assets carried at amortized cost. The Company has performed detailed customer wise specific assessment of recoverability of the unbilled receivables and has

dingly gnised the imp loss. Further, the Company is closely monitoring the developments across various business lines. Basis the aforesaid d. made by M provision made towards
unbilled receivables is considered adequate
The movement in the allowance for expected credit losses in respect of unbilled receivables during: the year was as follows:
Particul As at As at
artieutars March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Balance at the beginning of the year 838 42.75
Impairment loss recognized (from inuing op and discontinued operation) - 148
Amounts utilised/reversed = 10.89) 135.851
Balance at the end of the year 7.49 8.38
Cash and cash eyuivalents and other bank balances
Theeath and cash girivalents and other bank balances are held with bank and financial institution counterparties. N
/Loips recelvables 7 (ance
s A

|| _Other finahcjal assets |

3
|| Tht Compafly has peutbrv*ed detailed party wisc specific assessment of recoverability of the other financial assets and has accordingly recognised the impairment loss. Further, lhc\i -‘rﬁpany is closely mrnitoring the

£ 4 detailed

'. dw‘{opme 13 across wirios 'L-usmess lines. Basis the made by Mar

provision made towards trade receivables is considered adequate.

i'hlt_n_': Hély '.i’-a'n( GAD Tweag memioned above, none of the Group's financial assets are either impaired, and there were no indications that defaults in payment obli

would occur.



Medi Assist Insurance TPA Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements

(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)

32 Financial instruments — Fair values and risk manageroent (continued)

(iii) Liquidity risk

(This space is intentionally left blank}

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in mecting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are setfled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company's approach to
managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage

1o the Company's reputation.

Exposure to liquidity risk

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilitics at the reporting date. The

.

are gross and

d, and include estimated interest payments and exclude the impact of netting agreements:

As at March 31, 2023

. Contractual cash flows
Particatars Carrying amount!  0-12 months 2-5 years More than Total
Current, non-derivative financial liabilities
Trade payables 326.40 326.40 - - 326.40
Other financial liabilities 208.99 208.9% - - 208.99
Total 535.39 535.39 - - 535.39
As at March 31, 2022

Contractual cash flows
Particulars Carrying amount| 0-12 menths 2-5 years More than Total
S vears

Current, non-derivative financial lizbilities
Trade payables 460.86 460.86 - - 460.86
Other financial liabilities 78.37 78.37 - - 78.37
Total 539.23 539.23 - - §39.23

Capital management

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital and all other €quity reserves attributable to the cquity holders of the Company. The primary objective of the Company’s capital

in

management is to safeguard the Company’s ability to remain as a going concern and maximise the shareholder value. The Company manages its capital structure and makes adj in light of ct

ic conditions,

annual operating plans and long-term and other strategic investment plans. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to sharcholders

or issue new shares. The current capital structure of the Company is equity based with no financing through borrowings except through leasing. The Company is not subject to any extemally imposed capital requirements.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended March 31, 2023 and March 31 ,2022.

(This space is intentionally left blank}
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Notes to the financial statements
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35 Summary of discontinued operation
The financial performance and cash flows for discontinued operations:

(a) (i) Discontinued operation of card business

I During the Financial year 2020-21, the Company has decided to discontinue the business operations pertaining to card processing which are mainly generating from Govemnment contract. The
Company has disclosed the discontinuation of card processing business as discontinued operations as per the requirement of Ind AS 105 ' Non current asset held for sale and Discontinued

operation’.
As at As at

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Trade receivables 11.91 375
Trade payables 41.74 51.43

For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Revenue
Revenue from operations 23.30 118.11
Total income 23.30 118.11
Expenses
Other expenses 41.01 109.29
Total expenses 41.01 109.29
Profit/ (loss) before tax from a discontinued operation 17.71) 8.82
Tax credit / (expense)
Related to pre-tax profit/(loss) 4.46 12.22)

4.46 2.22)
Profit/ (loss) after tax from a discontinued operation 113.25) 6.60
II Net cash flows attributable to the dis: inued operations
For the year ended For the year ended

Particulars

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Net cash generated/ (used) in from operating activities - (A)

Net cash generated/ {used) in investing activities - (B)

Net cash generated/ (used) in financing activities - (C)

Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)

(b) (ii) Discontinued operatien of pre-policy checkup business

(3557

99.23

(35.57)

99.23

I During the Financial year 2021-22, the Company has decided to discontinue the business operations pertaining to pre-policy checkup services. The Company has disclosed the discontinuation
of pre-policy checkup business as discontinued operations as per the requirement of Ind AS 105 ' Non current asset held for sale and Discontinued operation'.

As at As at
Particulars Mareh 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Trade receivables 16.30 31.85
Unbilled receivables 2.57 7.10
Other receivables 4.46 30.75
2333 69.41
Trade payables 39.88 71.05
Other payables 4.46 30.75
44.34 101.80
For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Revenue
Revenue from operations 15.91 25.05
Total income 15.91 25.05
Expenses
Other expenses 15.12 23.83
Total expenses 15.12 23.83
Profit/ (loss) before tax from a discontinued operation 0.79 1.22
Tax credit / (expense)
Related to pre-tax profit/{loss) (0.20 (0.31)
10.20) 10.31)
Praofit/ (loss) after tax from a discontinued operation 0.59 0.91

T

=

Net cash flows attributable to the discontinued operations

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Net cash generated/ (used) in from operating activities - (A) (10.59) 11.66
Net cash generated/ (used) in investing activities - (B) - -
Net cash generated/ (used) in financing activities - (C) - -
Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (10.59) 11.66
For the year ended For the year ended

’ i;i_rtfml_ .

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

§
rf'_-' ﬁt/ (loss) aﬁer ta\ ﬁom w discontinued operation of card business {17.71} 8.82
I roﬁt/ (loss) after tax] fram | discontinued operation of pre-policy checkup business 0.79 1.22
| |_ (16.92) 10.04
\ 4,26 (2.53;
(12.66} 751
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36

37

38
(@)

(b}

39

(A}

(B)

Details of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) diture
Particulars o For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
(a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year 820 6.70_
{b) Amount approved by Board to be spent during the year 8.20 6.70
(©) amount of e_x;endimr: incurred M 8.20 6.70|
(f) nature of CSR activities [ The arca for CSR activities is| The area for CSR activities is
livelihood  enhancement  and|livelihood  enhancement and
employment enbanci jonal| employ hancing vocational|

skills by way of providing training|skills by way of providing training
in a wide array of functional areas|in a wide array of functional areas

to persons at various locations o!{to persons al various locations ol

the Company across India. the Company across India.
Movement of CSR expense during the vear
| Amount required to be spent .
Opening Balance during the vear Amount spent during the year Closing
=) 8.20 (8.20] =
Movement af CSR expense during 2021-22
. Amount required to be spent |
Opening Balance during the year I Amount spent during the year Closing
- : 6.70 | (6.70), -

Acquisition of Medvantage Insurance TPA Private Limited (“MITPL™):

During the year, in the Board meeting held on September 14, 2022 the Board of Directors of the Company approved the acquisition of 100% holding in Medvantage Insurance TPA Private Limited (' “Medvantage”) subject to approval
from IRDALI, on which day the Share Purchase Ag with Med ge and its pi s ("Sellers") was executed, pursuant to which the Company acquired 400,400 equity shares of Medvantage. The principal place of business of
Medvantage is in India. Further during the current year, the Company has increased its stake in Medvantage Insurance TPA Private Limited by further investing an amount of Rs. 100 million (166,945 shares) on February 17, 2023. These
shares have been allotted in the name of the Company subsequent to the year end in the month of April 2023.

Subsequently the Board of Directors in its meeting held on March 25, 2023, approved the amalgamation / merger of Medvantage with the Company as per the provisions of Section 233 of the Companies Act 2013 read with Rule 25
(C Ar and Amal ions) Rules 2016 under the fast track route and other applicable provisions, if any, and subject to requisite approvals of the shareholders of the Company /regulatory authorities.

The acquisition of MITPL is of significant strategic value for the Company and will further strengthen the Company's market leadership position in India. It is a significant non adjusting event.

Segment reporting

The Company operates under the principal business segment viz. “business of health benefits administration and health t services”, The Chief Operating Decxslon Maker {CODM) views and momlors the operating results of its

single business segment for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment. Also, operations of the Company is in ic market. A dingly, there are no separate reportable
in d with the requi s of Ind AS 108 ‘Operating segment’ and hence. there are no additional disclosures to be provided other than those already prov1ded in the financial statements.

L : d.

Information about major s {external 's):
(i) For the year ended March 31, 2023, revenue from contract with customers of two customers of the Company represented approximately 45% and 10%, of the Company’s revenue from contract with customers.

(if) For the year ended 31 March 2022, revenue from contract with customers of twa customers of the Company represented approximately 42% and 15%, of the Company’s revenue from contract with customers

Related party disclosures

In compliance with Ind AS 24 - “Related Party Disclosures”, as notified under Rule 3 of the Comp (Indian A ing dards) Rules, 2015 and Ci ies (Indian A ing Standards) A d Rules, 2016 the required
disclosures are given below:

Names of the related parties and description of relationship

(i). Holding Company Medi Assist Healthcare Services Limited

(ii). Key Management Personnel Dr. Vikram Jit Singh Chhatwal - Director

Mrs. Srimathi Ranganathan - Director
Satish Venkata Naga Gidugu - Director

Mr. Nikhil Chopra - Director
Mrs. Himani Atul Kapadia - Director
Suchitra Krishnak - Comp Secretary
(iif). Subsidiary Medvantage Insurance TPA Private Limited (formerly known as UnitedHealth Parekh I TPA Private Limited) (w.e.f February 13,
2023)
(iv) Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by Key Management Personnel Phasorz Technologies Private Limited
Summary of transactions with the above related parties are as follows :
For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Support service fee paid to
Phasorz Technologies Private Limited 15.11 23.86
Software subscription charges paid to
Medi Assist Healthcare Services Limited 557.15 462.14
Reimbursement of expenses to
- For staff Medical Insurance
Medi Assist Healthcare Services Limited 19.76 17.74
- For Health screenings
Phasorz Technologies Private Limited 45.53 153.12
Reimbursement of expenses from
Medi Assist Healthcare Services Limited 25.14 21.49
s o A i
/ .. . /-

(This space is intentionally left blank) / e
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39 B Summary of transactions with the above related parties {(continued)

©

Transfer of gratuity liability

Medi Assist Healthcare Services Limited - 8.45
Medvantage Insurance TPA Private Limited 8.26 -
Transfer of CWIP
Medi Assist Healthcare Services Limited 41.44 35.74
lnvestment in
Medvantage Insurance TPA Private Limited (refer note 37) 295.00
Transfer of asset to
Medi Assist Healthcare Services Limited 17.50
Reimbursement of expense to Director 0.62 -
Dividend paid
Medi Assist Healthcare Services Limited 200.00 -
Remuneration to Key Managerinl Personnel
i} Short term employze benefits 12.73 8.89
i} Director sitting fees 1.70 0.70

)

40

41

(a) The expenses reflected in Statement of Profit and Loss are net of those cross charged to the holding Company and that the management s confident of recovering the entire other receivable balance including the cross charge amount.

(b} As the liability for gratuity and compensated absence is provided on an actuarial basis for the Company as a whole, the amount pertaining to Director is not ascertainable and, therefore not included above.

The Company has the following due from/ to related parties

Particul As at Asat
b Mareh 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Amount payable towards rendering of services (Trade payables)

Medi Assist Healthcare Services Limited 73.78 215.94

Phasorz Technologies Private Limited 37.90 64.31

Other payables

Phasorz Technologies Private Limited 446 37.50

Accrued Expenses

Phasorz Technologies Private Limited 1.97 -

Other receivable

Medi Assist Healthcare Services Limited 43.18 69.52

Medvantage Insurance TPA Private Limited 8.26

Other financial liabilities

Employee benefits payable 3.00 0.95

Micro, small and medium enterprise

The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has issued an office memorandum dated August 26, 2008 which recommends that the micro and small enterprises should ion in their correspond with its the

P ] dum number as all d after filing of the memorandum in accordance with the ‘Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (“the Act’). Accordingly, the disclosure in respect of the amounts
payable to such enterprises as at March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 has been made in the fi ial based on infi fon received and available with the Company. Further in view of the Management, the impact of interest, if

any, that may be payable in accordance with the provisions of the Act is not expected to be material. The Company have following below dues to micto and small enterprises as at March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022,

The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each accounting period/year:

As at As at-

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
The principal amount and the interest due therson remaining unpaid to any supplier at the

end of each accounting year:

Principal 65.59 31.36
Interest R 1.23 1.20
Total o 66.82 32.56
The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small and

Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along with the amount of the payment made .

to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year.

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which

have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest

specified under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year. 243 1.20

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until
such date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the
putpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small
and Medium Enterprises Develop Act, 2006.

The information given above is to the extent such parties have been identified by the Company on the basis of information disclosed by the suppliers

The Company does nat have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there are any material foreseeable losses.

(This space is intentionally left blank)
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42 Ratios
I % Change from 31
Sr. Ratio Numerator / denominator March 31, 2023 archil, 2022 March 31, 2022 to Reason for change by more than 25%
No.
March 31, 2023
Amount Ratios Amount Ratios
1 | Current ratio _ Current afse_ts 3,821.39 155 3,493.32 146 6%|-
Current liabilities 2,458.06 2,386.59
2 | Debt- Equity Ratio J[ToalDebt __ 27763 0.11 22899 011 0%|-
Shareholder's equity 2,551.84 2,111.79
Eamings available for debt ] |
3 |Debt Service coverage Ratio = |service - - -l -
Debt Service - -
Net profits after taxes « 771.68 456.69
4 |Return on Equity ("ROE"} = |Preference dividend ) 0.33 ) 024 37%|Due to increase in net profit after tax.
Average shareholder's equity 2,331.82) 1,889.17
5 |Inventory Turnover Ratio = Castof Goods sold s s - o -
Averape Inventory - -
6 |Trade receivables tumover ratic | = [Net Credit Sales - 4,849.03 435 3.853.77 3.62 20%| -
Average Accounts Receivable 1,114.64 1,065.65
7 | Trade payables turnover ratio =] Net Credit Purchases pozesy 5.02 1,677.81 3.56 41%| Due to timely payment to creditors.
Average Accounts Payible 393.63 470.80
& |Net capital turmover ratio = | Net Sales 4.849.03 356 388377 348 2%)-
Working Capital 1.363.33 1.106.73
Net Profit after tax 771.68 456.69 Due to i in revenue and net fit
9 | Net profit ratio = 0.16 0.12 34% o |SETERSE in revenn pro
after tax.
Net Sales 4,849.03 3,853.77
10 :;eom‘;)on capital employed _ |Earning before interest and taxes 1,066.49 0.42 650.55 031 36%| Due to higher profit.
Capital Employed 2,551.84 2,111.79
Ifxu'nc:me generated from invested 9771 64.74
11 |Return on investment = = 0.05 0.04 18%|-
Average .mvested funds in 2.060.04 1.616.68 ;
treasury in

(This space is intentionally left blank)
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Medi Assist Insurance TPA Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements
(4l amounts are in Indian Rupees in millious, unless otherwise stated)

43 Additional Regulatory Information required under Schedule IT

(i) Details of benami property held
The Company does not have any benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules made
thereunder.

(iiy Borrowing secured against current assets
The Company has no borrowings from banks/financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets.

(iii) Wilful defaulter

The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or fi or govi or any government authority.

(iv) Relationship with struck off companies
The Company did not have any material transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of the Companies Act, 1956.

(v} Compliance with number of layers of companies
The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with the Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017.

(Vi) Compliance with approved scheme(s) of arrangements
The Company has not entered into any appi d scheme of arr which has an ing impact in current or previous financial year, Also refer note 37.

(vii) Utilisation of borrowed funds and share premium
I The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediarics) with the und ding that the Int diary shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimatc Beneficiaries) or
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries

Tt The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the C ‘ompany shall:

(a) direetly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner Whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries

(viii) Undisclosed fncome
The Company has not entered into any fransaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search
or survey or any other relevant Provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961}

(ix} Details of crypto currency or virtual currency
The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the current or previous year.

(x} Valuation of property, plant and i i ible asset and in property

The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets) or intangible assets or both during the current or previous year. The Company docs not have investment property.

(xi} Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Compzanies
There are no charges or satisfaction which are yet to be registered with the Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory period,

44 Exceptional item
There are no exceptional items as on balance sheet date.

45  Events after the reporting date
The Company evaluated all events or transactions that occurred after the balance sheet date through, the date at which the financial statements were available to be issued and determined that there are o other jtems to disclose except
those already disclosed in the financial in earlier notes.

46 The Code on Social Security 2020
The Code on Social Security 2020 (*the Code”) relating to employee benefits, during the employment and post-employ , has ived Presidential assent on September 28, 2020. The Code has been published in the Gazette of India.
Further, the ministry of labour and employment has released draft rules for the Code on November 13, 2020. However, the effective date from which the changes are applicable is yet to be notified and rules for quantifying the financial
impact are also not yet issued.
The Company will assess the impact of the Code and will give appropriate impact in the financial statements in the period in which, the Code becomes effective and the related rules to determine the financial impact are published.

47  Previous yrar figures have been regrouped/ reclassified to conform to the current year classification

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached.
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